
Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Venue: This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore 
will not take place in a physical location 

Date: Thursday, 6th August, 2020
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Rose Blaney Tel: 07385362773

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

To receive declarations by Members and/ or co-optees of 
interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised 
Code of Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable 
pecuniary interests or other registrable interests which have not 
already been declared in the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is 
a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest 
either in the Register or at the meeting). 

Members are advised however, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared 
in the Register, as well as any other interests. 

Members are reminded that they may not, by law, participate or 
vote in any discussion in a meeting on a matter in which they 
have a disclosable pecuniary interest 

Members are advised that they should leave the room during 
consideration of any items of business in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest.

Public Document Pack



3. Minutes of the meeting held on 6th February 2020 1 - 6

4. Executive Forward Plan 7 - 12

5. Update from Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

6. Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) 
representative 

7. Housing 

8. OSC Annual Report 2019/20 13 - 24

9. Outside Bodies Report 2019/20 25 - 106

10. 2019/20 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 4 107- 158

11. 2019/20 Finance Report - Quarter 4 159- 170

12. Covid 19 Update and Recovery Plan 171- 178

13. Task and Finish Group Updates 179- 180

14. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 181- 184

15. Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will 
be held on Thursday 10th September 2020 at 2:00pm. This will be 
a virtual meeting.

Membership: Councillors John Kane (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair), 
James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-
Bulman, Ged McGrath, Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen and Eileen Weir

Contacts: Direct Dial: 07385362773
E-mail: rose.blaney@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 6 FEBRUARY 2020

Present: Councillors Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair) in the Chair;  
Gemma Dinsdale, Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-Bulman, Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen 
and Andy Pratt

Officers: Julie Betteridge (Director of Growth and Inclusive Communities), James 
Young (Scrutiny Officer), Rose Blaney (Electoral Services Officer), Janice Carroll 
(Community Services Manager) and Amanda Starr (Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager)

Also Present: Les Finley (Housing Renewals Team Leader), Paul Cowings (Empty 
Homes Officer), Jan Boniface (Waste Management Officer) & Heather Holmes 
(Customer Services Team Leader)

OSC 20/79 Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor John Kane.

OSC 20/80 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

There were no declarations of interests made.

OSC 20/81 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 December 2019 

The Scrutiny Officer noted that he was still waiting on a response from the IT 
Department regarding Councillor Meteer’s emails, but would make sure the 
issue was resolved before the next Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) 
meeting.

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 December 2019 be 
signed by the Chair as a correct record.

OSC 20/82 Executive Forward Plan 

The Scrutiny Officer informed members that the Executive noted that OSC were 
interested in receiving future Nuclear Position Statements, however, the 
Executive believed that it would be best for those to be fully scrutinised by the 
Strategic Nuclear Energy Board (SNEB) to avoid duplication of work. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Following a discussion, OSC decided that they would like to have future Nuclear 
Position Statements brought to OSC, so that comments could be made and then 
fed back to SNEB.

The Scrutiny Officer also informed members that the Executive decided to defer 
the Voluntary Living Wage report until the next Executive meeting, following a 
meeting which is taking place between Sellafield Ltd., the Scrutiny Officer and 
Councillor David Moore (as the portfolio holder for Nuclear and Corporate 
Services). Councillor Pollen, the Chair of the Voluntary Living Wage task and 
finish group, noted that he was not happy with the Executive’s decision to defer 
the report, noting that it was a discussion that was needed. Councillor Pollen 
also asked for an invitation to the meeting with Sellafield. The Chair then asked 
for a full report from the meeting, not including any sensitive information, to 
come back to OSC.

The committee then went through the Executive Forward Plan with the Scrutiny 
Officer noting that should any member wish for an item to come to OSC, they 
should inform the Scrutiny Officer. The Chair formally asked the Scrutiny Officer 
to keep an eye on the Climate Action Plan ahead of the next meeting in April. It 
was also noted that the Local Plan Preferred Options was still on schedule with 
no delay having been indicated.

RESOLVED – That, 

a) The Executive Forward Plan was noted.
b) Future Nuclear Position Statements be brought to OSC for discussion and 

to have comments fed back to SNEB
c) The Scrutiny Officer will inform Councillor Pollen regarding his invitation 

to the meeting with Sellafield.
d) The Scrutiny Officer would bring the Climate Action Plan to the April OSC 

meeting.

OSC 20/83 Update from Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee 

No update available as the Cumbria Health Scrutiny Representative had sent 
their apologies.

RESOLVED – That for future meetings, all representatives provide a written 
report. This is to ensure that, even if the representative is unable to make the 
OSC meeting, members will be provided with some form of an update that they 
could then comment on.

Page 2



OSC 20/84 Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) 
representative 

Councillor Pollen gave OSC an in-depth overview of the latest STTUG meeting he 
attended in January. Some of the topics discussed were agile working, health 
and safety and supporting employees. Councillor Pollen also noted that 
questions are welcome by email at any time and not just at OSC meetings.

Councillor Dinsdale asked Councillor Pollen a question regarding young 
representatives and declared an interest as she works for Sellafield.

RESOLVED – That, 

a) Councillor Pollen will submit a written report to the next OSC meeting as 
per the resolution in Agenda Item 5.

b) Councillor Dinsdale will send Councillor Pollen an email with her specific 
question so that he can respond with the relevant information.

OSC 20/85 Housing 

The Housing updates came as part of the following two presentations.

OSC 20/86 Disabled Facilities Grants 2018/19 Presentation 

The Strategic Housing and Inclusion Manager gave a detailed presentation on 
the Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) 2018/2019 which informed OSC; on where 
the Council are in terms of giving out the Grants, what the Grants fund, the 
issues that the team have faced, the solutions that have been found and where 
the Housing team would like to be in the future.

The discussion which took place throughout the presentation provided further 
clarification for members on the financial aspects of the grants and the lack of 
impact that those aspects would have on the budget as well as the people of the 
Borough. There were also two proposals put forward to OSC for discussion 
regarding support for the further development of the grant. Which included the 
assurance being given by the Strategic Housing and Inclusion Manager that a fee 
charge of five per cent would come from the Government and not impact 
negatively on the most vulnerable members of the Borough.

Page 3



RESOLVED: – That,

a) OSC will support the proposal to raise the officer’s discretionary limit from 
an additional £5,000 to £10,000 where costs are over the statutory 
£30,000 limit for an adaptation.

b) OSC will support the proposal to include a means test for children’s cases 
that exceed £30,000.

c) OSC will support the proposal to include a management charge of five per 
cent for all DFG cases.

d) Future proposals will come in report format as well as a presentation to 
provide further information and clarity.

OSC 20/87 Empty Homes Presentation 

The Empty Homes Office gave OSC a presentation as an overview of the work 
that the Officer does regarding privately owned empty homes, the processes 
they are bound by and the work that has already been completed to bring the 
homes back into use. This is a continuous operation with numerous empty 
homes being brought forward every three to six months, which would need a 
cash rich recourse to bring back into use, this makes it hard to deal with and 
leaves Copeland with over 1,000 empty homes. 

It was also noted that since the Officer was put into place in September 2018 
there have been 213 empty homes brought into use, there were only 33 having 
been brought back into use before the Empty Homes Officer was put into place. 
Also noted was the possibility of a introducing a creative solution by creating a 
housing co-operative for young professionals to help decrease the large quantity 
of empty homes. Questions were asked regarding; owner engagement and the 
enforced sales procedure that could be implemented once the procurement 
procedure has been completed.

RESOLVED: – That,

a) OSC will support the work of the Empty Homes Officer
b) OSC will support the exploration into the use of the enforced sales 

procedure for the worst empty homes cases through a possible pilot 
project.

[A five minute comfort break was taken]

Page 4



OSC 20/88 Recycling Update 

The Chair took the decision to defer this presentation until the next meeting in 
April due to time constraints and wishing to give the officers the sufficient 
amount of time to deliver a succinct presentation.

However, the officers were able to give the OSC a quick overview of the 
progress the waste team has made over the last year including the previous 
work with OSC, their current work with schools (36 schools were contacted, with 
nine schools having been visited to date, talking to pupils aged five to ten) as 
well as the visits and work with ‘Edna the Recyclephant’. The Waste Officer also 
highlighted the impact of litter and how to recycle properly. Members 
proceeded to ask the officers a few questions regarding waste collections from 
schools, alternative recycling routes, and further training for crews. However, 
the majority of questions were left until the next meeting in April when the full 
presentation is to be given.

OSC 20/89 Millom Hub Verbal Update 

The Chair took the decision to defer this update until the next meeting in April 
due to time constraints and wishing to give the officers the sufficient amount of 
time to deliver a succinct presentation.

OSC 20/90 Task and Finish Group Updates 

The Scrutiny Officer gave OSC a brief overview of the current Task and Finish 
groups and activities that had taken place, including the appointment of 
Councillor Jones-Bulman as the Chair of the Older People Task and Finish group. 
An emphasis was made on overall poor member attendance which needs to be 
improved.

RESOLVED – That the Chair of the Recycling Task & Finish Group would chase 
councillors to collect questions for the Recycling Review.

OSC 20/91 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

The Scrutiny Officer gave members an update of the changes that have been 
made to the work programme since it was added to the agenda. The Officer 
reminded members of the process to add a topic to future agendas.

The Chair, as a last minute note before moving onto the last agenda item and 
closing the meeting, gave a message of thanks to the Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities who was attending their last OSC meeting.

Page 5



OSC 20/92 Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Monday 6th April 2020 at 2pm in the Bainbridge Room, Copeland Centre.

The Meeting closed at 4.32 pm 

Chair

Page 6



 
 

Executive 25 August 2020
MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN 

 
This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period. 
 
A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers 
performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant 
(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its 
effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s 
constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend 
the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a 
permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough. 
 
A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made. 
An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be 
reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter 
notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred. 
 
Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as 
Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt.
 
Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not 
containing confidential or exempt information. 
 

  

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Outside Bodies 
Annual Report

Council OSC 
6 August 2020

Council 
22 September 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No No

Annual Scrutiny 
Report

Council OSC 
6 August 2020

Council 
22 September 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

No No

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 1 

Executive  Executive
25 August 2020            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 1

Executive Executive
25 August 2020

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Health and Safety 
Monitoring Half 
Yearly Report
  

Executive  Executive
25 August 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive

No No

P
age 8



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy

Executive Executive
25 August 2020 

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

Fees and Charges in 
existing services

Executive  Executive
25 August 2020

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

No No

Towns Fund update Executive Executive
25 August 2020

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No No

Local Plan Preferred 
Options

Council Special Council
8 September 2020

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

Millom Hub Executive  OSC
6 August 2020
Executive 
15 September 2020         

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Beacon Update Executive  Executive 
15 September 2020   
        

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan 

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

No No

P
age 9



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Climate Action Plan Executive Executive 
15 September 2020 

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes Yes

Environment Policy

Council

Executive 
15 September 2020 

Council
22 September 2020

Environment, Place 
and Inclusive 
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

Copeland 
Community Fund 

Executive 15 September 2020 Mayor
Mike Starkie

Pat Graham – 
Chief Executive 

Yes No

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2

Executive Executive
10 November 2020

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2 

Executive  Executive
10 November 2020            

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

Constitution – 
Financial Regulations

Council Council
15 December 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

P
age 10



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Constitution 
Refresh/Update

Council Council
15 December 2020

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Budget Consultation 
Outcome

Executive Executive
19 January 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

Independent 
Remuneration Panel 
report

Council Council
February 2021

Nuclear & Corporate 
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

Draft Budget
(incl Amendments to 
Discretionary Relief 
Policy, Discount and 
Premium Policy, Pay 
Policy Statement)

Council

Executive
19 January 2021

OSC
12 January 2021

Council 
9 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

P
age 11



Report Who will 
make the 
decision 

Date on which the 
decision will be 
made 

Portfolio 
Holder

Lead Officer Key 
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt

information

Budget 
(incl Amendments to 
Discretionary Relief 
Policy, Discount and 
Premium Policy, Pay 
Policy Statement)

Council Council (Prov)
2 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources

Yes No

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3

Executive Executive
2 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial 
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes No

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3 

Executive  Executive
2 February 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown – 
Director of Financial 
Resources 

Yes No

 

P
age 12



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2019/20

LEAD MEMBER: Cllr John Kane
LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services 

and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)
REPORT AUTHOR: James Young, Scrutiny Officer

Why has this report come to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee? 
The Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019/20 must be approved by 
the Committee before it can be presented to Council.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are recommended to:

a) Note the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019/20

1. BACKGROUND 

1.1 In accordance with the Constitution of Copeland Borough Council the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) must report annually to the 
Council on its work.

1.2 The purpose of the report is to highlight the work of the Committee, 
explain how the scrutiny function of the Council operates and 
encourage wider participation from Council members and the public.

1.3 The OSC Work Programme has been significantly impacted by the 
Covid-19 pandemic and this is reflected in the report.

     
2. CONCLUSION

2.1 The Committee are asked to note the report and to help encourage 
more participation from members who are not on the Committee in 
future OSC work. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



Background Paper and Appendices:

Appendix A – Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2019-2020

Page 14



Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report 2019-2020

Page 15



Page 2 of 9

2
Chair’s Forward

I would like to start the introduction of the 2019-20 Overview and Scrutiny 
Annual Report by paying tribute and thanking the following people; James Young 
(Scrutiny Officer), Cllr Fee Wilson (Deputy Chair) and all the councillors and 
council staff whose dedication and commitment is unquestionable. 

The municipal year of 2019/2020 will never be forgotten, the COVID-19 pandemic 
and the ensuing ongoing pandemic has changed every aspect of our lives and the 
way Copeland Borough Council operates for the foreseeable future. From our 
directly elected Mayor, all the councillors and every council employee whose 
flexibility and adaptability to change is a shining beacon in our community, I 
thank you.

We held eight Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) meetings from June 2019 
until February 2020 when events overtook us. All of the OSC committee members 
attended a fantastic Scrutiny training course organised by our officer James.

This pandemic and subsequent 
lockdown has highlighted the 
importance of one of our 
ongoing working group on 
facilities and social well-being 
for the older persons and we 
hope to carry on this work 
whenever that is possible.

Overview and scrutiny will be 
crucial in ensuring that 
Copeland’s recovery from the 
pandemic is robust and will 
continue to ensure 
transparency and accountability 
in the decision making process. 
This will ensure that Copeland 
and its communities come back 
better and stronger from this 
crisis.

Page 16



Page 3 of 9

3
Table of Contents

Introduction Page 4

2019-2020 Highlights Page 5

Constitution Changes - Planning Page 5

Constitution Changes – Overview and Scrutiny Page 6

Disabled Facilities Grants Page 6

Empty Homes Page 7

Conclusion and Next Steps Page 7

Scrutiny Contact Details Page 8

Page 17



Page 4 of 9

4
1.0 Introduction

1.1 Welcome to the 2019-20 Annual Report on the overview and scrutiny 
function of Copeland Borough Council (CBC). This report will detail the 
work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC.

1.2 Scrutiny is one of the main checks and balances to the power of the 
Executive. The key roles of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:

 Ensuring the Executive is accountable; this enables more 
transparent and effective decision making. This includes the power 
to ‘call-in’ a decision made by the Executive that has not yet been 
implemented.

 Reviewing and developing policies; the Committee supports the 
development of effective policies and initiatives through policy 
review and development.

 Ensuring the continuous improvement of Council Services; receiving 
quarterly performance and finance reports to ensure that the 
Council is performing to the best of its abilities for its residents.

1.3 In 2018-19 the members of the Copeland Borough Council Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee were:

 Cllr John Kane (Chair)
 Cllr Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair)
 Cllr Charles Maudling
 Cllr Gemma Dinsdale
 Cllr Linda Jones-Bulman
 Cllr Eileen Weir
 Cllr Andy Pratt
 Cllr Jeffrey Hailes
 Cllr Sam Meteer

Page 18



Page 5 of 9

5
2.0 2019-2020 Highlights

2.1 Constitution changes - Planning

2.1.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee were asked by Council on 25th June 
2019 to consider the proposed changes to the Planning Section of the 
Council’s Constitution. 

2.1.2 Councillors felt that the constitution changes needed to be fully scrutinised 
by the Committee to ensure that any member’s concerns were fully 
addressed.

2.1.3 The Committee convened on 19th August 2019 for a Special Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee meeting to analyse the changes. To ensure that their 
scrutiny was fully informed the Council Chief Executive, Solicitor and the 
Planning and Place Manger attended to provide expert input into the 
discussion.

2.1.4 During the meeting it was resolved that a specific task and finish group 
should be established to scrutinise the Member’s Protocol of the proposed 
changes.

2.1.5 Outcome
As a result of the scrutiny by the Committee a number of changes were 
made to the original proposed changes:

o Ward Councillor or Town/Parish Councillors would still be able to call 
in planning applications even if they are not considered major 
planning applications in the Scheme of Delegation.

o The removal of a proposed restriction on the number of speakers in 
support or opposition on any planning application.

o All changes to the section on member’s site visits be left unchanged 
from the existing constitution.

o The creation of a General Protocol for Planning and Licensing 
members and a Protocol for Site Visits which set standards of 
attendance, training and expectation for those committees.

Page 19



Page 6 of 9

6
2.2 Constitution Changes – Overview and Scrutiny

2.2.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviewed the overview and scrutiny 
chapter of the constitution on 22nd August 2019. 

2.2.2 The Committee reviewed the chapter to ensure that it was easy for the 
public to understand and updated with current legislation.

2.2.3 Outcome
The Committee made a number of key changes:

o Makes clear that the Party Whip is not permitted in Committee.
o The Call-In procedure was updated to ensure that topics that are 

brought before the committee are valid.
o A requirement for members to undertake training was added to 

ensure that Scrutiny was                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

2.3 Disabled Facilities Grants

2.3.1 The Disabled Facilities Grants 2018/19 update was presented to the 
Committee in March 2020.

2.3.2 The Strategic Housing and Social Inclusion Manager presented the update 
to the Committee and presented some potential ways forward for the 
service to maintain its current excellent level of service.

2.3.4 Outcome
The Committee recommended and supported a number of changes to 
Disabled Facilities Grants as recommended by the Strategic Housing and 
Social Inclusion Manager including:

o Raising the officer’s discretionary limit from an additional £5,000 to 
£10,000 on Disabled Facilities Grants where costs are over the 
statutory £30,000 limit for an adaptation.

o Including a means test for children’s Disable Facilities Grants that 
exceed £30,000.

o Include a management charge of five percent for all Disabled 
Facilities Grants cases.

Page 20



Page 7 of 9

7
2.4 Empty Homes

2.4.1 The Empty Homes Officer presented a review of their work since their 
appointment to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6th February 
2020.

2.4.2 The Committee were please what since the appointment of the Empty 
Homes Officer 213 empty homes have been brought back into use 
compared with 33 previously.

2.4.3 Outcome
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee supported the Empty Homes Officer 
in exploring the use of the enforced sales procedure for the worst empty 
homes cases through a possible pilot project.

3.0 Conclusion and Next Steps

3.1 The primary purpose of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is to hold 
the Executive to account and act as a critical friend and the committee has 
fulfilled this role throughout the past year. The Committee has had a 
positive impact on the community its serves and is excited for the future.

3.2 Overview and scrutiny will be critical during the recovery from the Covid-
19 pandemic. 

3.3 The Council and its partners will be engaged in a significant amount of 
activity relating to the operational emergency response; scrutiny cannot 
second guess this response or seek to “oversee” it – partners will be 
moving fast and acting accordingly. However, scrutiny can consider how 
well partners are working together, overseeing the systems that contribute 
to smooth, and effective decision-making. 

3.4 The committee can maintain oversight on matters relating to council 
finances and act as a conduit for community experiences. To this end, the 
committee shall be hoping to engage with a wide array of the public and 
incorporate their questions and concerns into their work programme.

Page 21



Page 8 of 9

8
3.5 Covid-19 has brought about much change but this committee feel that, by 

working together with the Executive, Copeland can emerge from this crisis 
stronger and closer than before.

Scrutiny Contact Details 

James Young
Scrutiny Officer
01946 598375
Scrutiny@Copeland.gov.uk

Page 22

mailto:Scrutiny@copeland.gov.uk


Page 9 of 9

9

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
Outside Bodies Annual Report 2019-20

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Cllr David Moore
LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services 

and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)
REPORT AUTHOR: James Young, Scrutiny Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE?

This report provides copies and an analysis and overview of the annual reports 
received by Council Members representing the Council on Outside Bodies 
during 2019/20.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are recommended to:

(a) Consider and note the Outside Bodies annual review reports received 
and any recommendations to Full Council on the detail provided; and

(b) Identify any changes to the reporting process and feedback forms that 
could assist Members in their role and forward any subsequent 
recommendations to Full Council.

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Outside Bodies Representation List is reviewed and agreed annually 
by Full Council and identifies both Member Champions and Members on 
Outside Bodies. This report relates to representation for the 2019/20 
year.

1.2 Members formally allocated to outside body representation are 
expected to provide an annual feedback report. Each year these reports 
are considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to acknowledge 
where and how Members have been active in their Outside Bodies. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



Members use existing mechanisms, mainly linked officers, to feed any 
actions or issues into the council.

1.3 Members representing the Council on Outside Bodies have a 
responsibility to report actions, issues and risks to ensure required 
activity is undertaken by the Council. Any necessary concerns will then 
be addressed and any appropriate mitigating action taken. A standard 
summary feedback form template is in place for Member 
representatives to use following a meeting that can then be circulated to 
the relevant officers and Members for follow up information, 
communication and action.

2.0 FEEDBACK RECEIVED

2.1 The responses from outside body Member representatives are attached 
at Appendix A and responses from Member Champions are attached at 
Appendix B.  The feedback received includes 25 Member 
representatives, 48% of Outside Bodies on the list, and 6 Member 
Champions, 54% of Member Champions on the list. As was evidenced in 
last year’s responses, Members have been active in their Outside Bodies 
during the past year. They continue to work with officers and use 
existing mechanisms, including circulating notes and minutes of 
meetings attended to feed issues into the Council.  

2.2 As highlighted last year several Outside Bodies publish their papers 
online and are therefore available to Members and Staff to access e.g. 
Copeland Community Fund.

2.3 A number of key partnerships are reported on through the Portfolio 
reports to Full Council and using the quarterly performance 
management and reporting framework.

2.4 Six Member Champions have reported on their annual activities:  Health 
and Wellbeing, Antis-Social Behaviour, SME, Older Persons, Young 
People, Heritage and Homelessness.  This annual reporting is not 
obligatory and those received are attached at Appendix B.  

Page 26



2.5 Champions also use opportunities throughout the year to report through 
standard communications mechanisms on issues and activities.  Some 
Champions take the opportunity to meet with staff and key partners 
regularly and others are active Members of projects, such as the 
Children’s Charter. All six reports highlight the value of the champion 
role to the Council and delivery of our priorities in this area.  

2.6 The Covid-19 pandemic has significantly affected the frequency of 
meetings of Outside Bodies since March 2020 and this must be taken 
into account when viewing the responses from Members.

3.0 CONCLUSIONS

3.1 The purpose of the annual review report is to ensure Members are able 
at least once a year to reflect and report on their activity highlighting 
any issues.  It is also a mechanism for Members to be held to account; if 
Copeland Borough Council is not represented on Outside Bodies that 
they have Members allocated to it disenfranchises Copeland residents.

3.2 In summary, the annual reporting for 2019/20 has been 52%, more than 
2018/19 at 40%, but less than the nearly 60% in 2017/18 and 
significantly less than the 80% response from the previous year.

3.3 This report is provided to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 
consideration and comment.  Any comment and/or recommendations 
for improvement will be taken to the next meeting of Full Council.

List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Outside Bodies Feedback Forms received
Appendix B – Member Champion Feedback Forms received
Appendix C – Agreed Outside Bodies List 2019/20

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Felicity Wilson

Name of Outside Body:  Community Fund

N/A

There have been no meetings in the period that I have taken over being on the committee from 
Cllr G McGrath up until May 2020.

Page 29



Appendix A

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: F.Wilson                        Dated:         24/07/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

N/A

Page 30



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 2

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Felicity Wilson

Name of Outside Body:  Safeguarding

Reviewed Personal Safety for Councillors

Agreed to issue the LGUI Safety Booklets

Discussed Safe Reporting Centres for Children in our Borough.

Reviewed the process for referring adults to Social Care

Reviewed Safeguarding Training for officers and councillors.

Page 31



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: F.Wilson                        Dated:         24/07/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Continue the work that is being done, especially following COVID-19

Page 32



Report to Copeland Borough Council on The WCSSG Risk and Hazard Reduction and Waste 

Management Working Group   

 This report covers a 12-month period from May 2019- present.  

 All meetings have been well attended by members and supported by Regulators and members 

of Sellafield Ltd. 

 Two meetings of the R&HR&WM working group were cancelled  

o June 2019 meeting; due to a speaker cancelling  

o March 2020 meeting; due to Covid-19  

 Meetings have been held as follows:  

Date Topic of Discussion  

30th October 2019  
 

- Calder Landfill Extension Segregated Area (CLESA) Study  
- Integrated Waste Management at Sellafield Ltd.  

18th December 2019  - Remediation of redundant settlement tank 
- MSSS progress update 
- ONR regulation of waste retrievals from MSSS 

 

Highlights to report are:  

Andy Pratt was elected as the new vice chair.  

CLESA Study:  

Mark Hunter, CLESA Saftey Case Lead at Sellafield Ltd. delivered the update.  The study outcomes are 

listed below: 

- Locations are problematic for a range of reasons, key being: 

 Subject to coastal erosion, or; 

 Too little height above the principle aquifer (sandstone) 

- EA would not support application for the on-site locations (coastal erosion or principal aquifer) 

unless: waste is inert or the location is shown to be optimal compared with off-site options 

- Next phase of work, Best Available Techniques (BAT) study which will consider a range of 

factors including: Environmental impact, Safety & Cost 

- BAT Study to compare options:  on-site locations (new landfill), off-site locations (new landfill) 

and hybrid scenarios 

- Need to define the scope and contractor involvement 

- Stakeholder engagement being considered – who and how 

Integrated Waste Management at Sellafield Ltd 

Lisa Maxwell, Integrated Waste Strategy Manager at Sellafield Ltd. delivered the update. The 

presentation discussed 3 main topics:  

1. The Integrated Waste Management (IWM) Programme. This is part of the site strategy team 

and was created to form a centralized waste management team; that provides strategic 

oversight and enterprise governance.  

Page 33



2. Waste Management Approaches. This gave an overview of the various waste categories the 

waste life cycle and the risk informed lifecycle approach to waste management. The team are 

trying to break traditional waste naming and routes and focusing more on waste boundaries. 

3. Integrated Waste Strategy. Cascaded from NDA and UK Government Strategy and articulates 

the strategic approach for waste management at Sellafield Ltd.  

The purpose of integrated waste management at Sellafield Ltd. is to support the delivery of the 

Sellafield mission by optimising waste management, where practicable, giving due regard to the 

environment.  To deliver this mission Sellafield Ltd must develop and maintain sustainable, robust, 

timely and fit for purpose waste management routes.  

Remediation of redundant settlement tank 

Phil Hallington, Head of Policy at Sellafield ltd. delivered the update.  

On the International Nuclear and Radiological Event Scale (INES), the leak from the Settling Tank was 

raised at level 1, an anomaly.  

Since the leak, a lot of ground water testing has been carried out using a range of boreholes at a range 

of distances from the settling tank; this has given no indication of where the leak is arriving from.  

The goal is to transfer debris out of the plant as quickly as possible, to facilitate;  

 There will be an operational area for debris retrievals  

 Operations will be carried out over Christmas to identify the leak  

 Aim is to identify and stop the leak – via concrete plug  

MSSS progress update 

Phil Hallington, Head of Policy at Sellafield ltd. delivered the update.  

On the International Nuclear and Radiological Event Scale (INES), the leak from the Silo was raised at 

level 2, an incident.  

The leak was detected via computer programme which measures the liquor levels. From June-

September there was a reduction in the liquor level and a ministerial report was raised. The leak 

believed to be related to the old cracks; most likely leaking through a series of microcracks.  

There is a balance of risk relating to the leak and the material within the silo. Waste retrievals have 

been prioritised by the company and regulators; as the risk of the facility is already intolerable due to 

the state of the building.  

The current position is enhanced monitoring. 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



ONR regulation of waste retrievals from MSSS 

Peter Hayes, Project Inspector for the Office of Nuclear Regulation (ONR) delivered the update.  

The ONR concluded that the overall risk arising from the ageing MSSS facility is intolerable. Thus, it is 

imperative to commence safe waste retrieval in the short term; since conditions continue to 

deteriorate and the risk continues to increase with time. 

The law requires that Sellafield Ltd in its management of MSSS is to reduce the risk, to both workers 

and to members of the public, to be as low as is reasonably practicable. Thus, there is a balance 

between the trouble taken to handle the risk and management of the risk. 

There are two waste forms to be considered solid and effluent waste. 

-  To manage the risk; the liquor can be transferred to Site Ion Exchange Effluent Plant (SIXEP) 

and deionised water added to reduce the activity.  

- Silo Emptying Plant (SEP) machines will be used to retrieve solid waste for storage in a more 

modern storage facility. 

Regulatory strategy is set-out in advance in ONR Decision Records.  

Future topics to be addressed:  

- Sellafield’s response to Covid-19  

- Update on MSSS  

- NDA Strategy 4 consultation 

In my opinion Copeland Borough Council should continue to have a proactive presence on this 

Committee. 

Cllr. Felicity Wilson 

Chairman of Risk and Hazard Reduction and Waste Management Committee of the WCSSG 

May 2019 to 2020 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Quarterly

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1 (15/7/20)

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Gemma Dinsdale

Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG LLWR

Oversight of all things relating to LLWR.

However, I don’t know that I was on the panel so didn’t complete this. Will attend all meetings going 
forward.

*Just for clarity as I don’t want you to think I’ve purposely avoided attendance – the emails haven’t 
included calendar invites and I have been receiving over 100 emails / 2-3 days with most being 
spam. I’ve reported it to IT but been told I just had to sift through them and these have mistakenly 
ended up in a spam pile. I also wasn’t verbally told to my record that I was on the panel so haven’t 
been looking out for the invites/emails. I will rectify this going forward.

I wasn’t aware that I was on the panel until being asked to complete this form and then receiving 
a call from the organiser last week.

Page 41



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body?    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed:             Dated:      14/7/20   

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Official meeting invites to be sent please, if not done already.

Page 42



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Quarterly

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 2

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Gemma Dinsdale

Name of Outside Body:  Police & Crime Commissioner Panel

1) Holding PCC to account.

2) Confirming PCC precept

3) Inputs into debates regarding use of Tasers by police and other agenda items

4) Representing Copeland’s needs from PCC

All agendas and minutes of meetings are held in the directors office.

Page 43



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body?    

Yes, but training/mentoring & monthly council checking needed going forward please.

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

I think if I understood better I’d have the confidence to question more – it’s very much keeping up 
appearances (which I find pointless).

Signed:             Dated:      7/7/20   

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

As a first time/new member I didn’t receive much in the way introduction wise of do’s and don’ts 
and feel as though there are much more don’ts. They hate written queries and opinions, seems a 
bit pointless to me.

Page 44



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Quarterly

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Jackie Bowman

Name of Outside Body:  West Cumbria Site Stakeholder Group (WCSSG) LLWR Working 
Group

Where appropriate and to help my understanding of LLWR I will ask questions. 

At the meetings we also get briefings from the workforce which are informative and 
interesting

Only able to attend one meeting due to clashes with other meeting commitments.

I do get the minutes, Environment reports, NDA reports and full reports with Health & 
Safety updates

Page 45



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

I do think that it is an important committee to be part of.

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed:                         Dated:         11/06/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Page 46



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Linda Jones-Bulman

Name of Outside Body:  LDP Committee & Elderly Person’s Champion

There have been numerous meetings with the Scrutiny Officer to establish a plan to invite service 
providers to meet and possibly between us find a gap in service provisions in which CBC may be 
able to help fill.

Sadly with the COVID-19 outbreak this endeavour has been temporarily put on hold.

Only recently been put onto the LDP Committee, with only one meeting being held since 
appointment but unable to attend due to connection problems.

Elderly Person’s Champion is a new role that has yet to fully be established.

Page 47



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: L.Jones-Bulman                         Dated:         24/07/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Establish Elderly Person’s Champion role and build on what has been started.

Page 48



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: 

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: Carlisle, Wigan, and Warrington

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Michael McVeigh

Name of Outside Body:  Alliance

Future High Streets Funding, Towns Funds , ongoing projects with Copelands officers well in hand 
for the exciting High Streets project in Whitehaven presented for public viewing ,again Covid-19 
impacting and we can but hope with financial meltdown inevitably coming who knows what the 
future holds.

Towns fund ongoing with dedicated teams from the two towns, Millom and Cleator Moor putting 
together a comprehensive package for necessary funds to take projects forward.

Page 49



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Michael McVeigh                         Dated:         28 May 2020

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Sadly the last two meetings have suffered from Covid-19 and cancelled but updated from 
secretariat who do meet with MPs and Civil servants in Westminster office. With the new 
government being formed and New Members of Parliament a new group of Member's  was being 
put together sadly our MP is unable to be part of that team with her new position as PPS for the 
Prime Minister but she has indicated who her representatives will be for information gathering. 

Page 50



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: 

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Michael McVeigh

Name of Outside Body:  Cumbria Housing Group

1. Housing Needs Survey. Ongoing putting together  every five years so as strategy can be 
evaluated for needs in planning of housing requirements, the hope is this will be 
presented to Full Council late summer, Covid-19 possible impact but the hope is it will be 
ready.

2. MHCLG, Ministry of Housing Community and Local Government funding across the County 
for new initiative's with the expectation that the Six districts and County work together 
and I can inform Council that we most certainly are with Amanda Starr leading for CBC 
with myself as Portfolio holder attending above meetings. Copeland and Allerdale working 
together in Rough Sleepers and provision in cases of Homelessness, ongoing but well 
covered.

3. Disabled Facilities Grants all well under control and on track, in that referral's come via 
Cumbria County Council bit of a slow down with Covid-19 but nothing of major concern 
fortunately. 

4. Empty homes ongoing exercise and work in progress.

Page 51



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Michael McVeigh                         Dated:       28 May 2020  

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

I would like to thank Amanda Starr and her team for the great work they do. Along with Councillor 
Sam Pollen as the Homeless champion, we see first hand just how professional and accomplished 
the team is.

Page 52



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: 4 Board 1 strategic away day 1Small grants Panel

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:6

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s):David Moore

Name of Outside Body: Copeland Community Fund 

As a board  member I have been involved all decisions  made and setting the themes to be 
supported. I am also working as executive member on the new cooperation agreement between 
Copeland, County and NDA.

Copeland Community Fund board comprises of representatives from CBC, CCC, 
LLWR , NDA and independent members. The fund and team have benefitted 
substantially from the management and leadership of Julie Betteridge, who left 
Copeland Borough Council March 2020, but has led the team and advised the 
Board of Copeland Community Fund since it’s inception nearly 10 years ago.
 
Copeland Community Fund continues to support community groups to develop 
and deliver sustainable projects across Copeland. In 2019/20 Copeland 
Community Fund commissioned Cumbria CVS to provide one to one governance 
support to community organisations. Three organisations received this one to one 
support including: refining roles & responsibilities, reviewing policies & procedures, 
to registering as a CIO or charity. This work has a real positive impact on the way 
groups operate, it can provide step change and is extremely valued.
 
During 2019-20 Copeland Community Fund committed over £1,908,000 
leveraging nearly £1,386,000 in match funding to the Borough. The Fund has 
provided 2 Annual Endowments and committed grants to 22 new projects: 3 
Enabling Grants, 8 Small / Local Communities grants and 11 large grants (3 Work 
& Skills Projects; 3 Health & Wellbeing Projects; 4 Youth Projects; 1 Community 
Infrastructure & Environment Project).
 
CCF also committed £10,500 through the Enabling Fund in addition to the 
Enabling Fund grants, which are provided to finance specific areas of project 
developments over and above the support provided from the Community 
Development officers and external partners. For example the Enabling Fund also 
commissioned Cumbria CVS to deliver West Cumbria Funding Fair, 1:1 
governance support (5 organisations) and Copeland Governance Academy. ACT 
was commissioned to provide 1:1 governance to one organisation. In addition to a 
new CCF coordinated initiative “Meet The Funders” – a series of informal 
networking workshops with a range of funders and infrastructure organisations. 
Community Development – the development support provided by the Community 
Development Officers continues to be a valued element of Copeland Community 
Fund’s innovative support to community organisations. The CCF Evaluation 2014 - 
2019 Interim Report noted that funded groups found communication and support 
from CCF very helpful during the project development and application processes 
emphasising the essential tailored support on offer.
 

Page 53



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body  YES  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: Board Member

Signed:                         Dated: 22/06/20        

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Cooperation agreement 

Page 54



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: One the AGM

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:0

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s):David Moore

Name of Outside Body :North West Employers  

I have been correspondence with this organisation to facilitate a meeting with myself and our HR 
and Democratic services manager to see what extra support and training we can get in for our 
members. I will pick this up again when guidance allows for meetings and training.

Our HR team meet regularly with North West employers most of the engagement is at officer 
level they provide support and advice. Are use has increased to weekly briefings to assist the 
Council through these unprecedented times.

Page 55



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body  YES  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed:                         Dated: 22/06/20        

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Member training

Page 56



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Four per year 

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:3

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s):David Moore

Name of Outside Body: NuLeaf 

NuLeaf advises local authority’s on all aspects of nuclear legacy waste, I have input on all aspects 
of their work as these are relevant to the waste stored in Copeland and materials that may come 
to Copeland in the future. They are also assisting interested local authority’s with GDF.    

NuLeaf advises local authorities on all aspects of nuclear legacy, I have circulated to all members 
the monthly update newsletter.  

Page 57



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body  YES  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: I am currently the 
Vice Chair

Signed:                         Dated: 22/06/20

        

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

All aspects of their work continue over a long time scale.

Page 58



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: bi annually

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Russell Studholme 

Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG Spent fuel management and Nuclear materials

WCSSG

This body looks after the management of spent fuel still stored on the Sellafield site. 
Unfortunately due to work commitments as was only able to attend one meeting this year, in this 
meeting a presentation was given by Sellafield ltd on the reprocessing of remaining fuel left in the 
storage pound and this fuel was destined for Magnox reprocessing. Oxide reprocessing has ended 
due to all oxide fuel been proceeded. Magnox fuel reprocessing will continue to to all the 
remaining fuel in the storage ponds has gone.

A presentation was given by SIXEP on the planned construction of a new plant as the exist plant is 
end off life. Having deep understanding of the fuel cycle and reprocessing I enquired why the 
plant was end of life, to be told the plant was operational but was full of waste resin beds 
therefore no storage. I challenge this as the waste resin can be back washed to remove 
contamination and reused. They agreed with the challenge but seem set on a new plant.

I think this option is a complete waste of money because it is just the easy option and not the 
most economical and environmental friendly.

The final item was to invite the MOD to the next meeting to discuss the status of the fuel they 
have stored in the storage ponds.

Unfortunately I was unable to attend this meeting

Page 59



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

The Council should continue to have representation as the man agent of this material 
Is key to the operations of Sellafield

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

I would like to be able to position myself as deputy chair on this committee as It Is a 
subject that needs through scrutiny that It Is being managed efficiently.

Signed:                         Dated:         

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

I think the plan to build a new SIXEP plant should be challenged and other option investigated.

The amount of MOD fuel and management of it should be reviewed to get an understand of it 
future management.

Page 60



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: twice yearly

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Russell Studholme

Russell Name of Outside Body:  WCSSG Environmental health

Having an extensive career working on the Sellafield site I have a deep understanding of the 
reports presented and the presentation given.

Both report showed the radioactive dose received by members of the public from work undertaken 
on the Sellafield site are still well below international guidelines and consistent with previous report 
since 2014. The Environment report also stated the perimeter boreholes around the site show no 
changes from previous years therefore no significant levels of activity have reached the site 
perimeter.

 The third item discussed was the breach of containment of one of the waste magnox scarf silos,

One silo is losing approx one meter cube of water per day, the silo is continually having to be 
topped up with water to keep the waste under water.

The perimeter around the silo is penetrated with a series of borehole from which sample of ground 
water are sample and analysed for radio isotopes, as yet no significant increase in level have been 
detected.

Work is ongoing to plug the leak.

There were three main items discussed this year and these were the presentation of the 
presentation of the radioactivity is food and the environment 2018 report, secondly the 
monitoring our environment report 2018 and thirdly a presentation on the leak from the magnox 
waste award silo.

Page 61



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

The Council should continue with representation on this outside body as monitoring 
and safe operation of Sellafield Is critical to the safety and well being of the local 
communities.

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

I have being asked to stand as deputy chair of this outside body going forward upon 
other members agreement.

Signed: Submitted by email                         Dated:         3 May 2020

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

The major issue to be carried forward is the breach in the silo containment and associated ground 
water monitoring program.

Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings: Quarterly    
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 4  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   BEC Board   

Purpose of the board to oversee the BEC property portfolio and drive growth plans for 
Copeland and Allerdale  

 

Projects focussed on in 2019/20 include the Buzz station, North Shore Regenerations 
scheme and future High Streets Fund Bid  

Executive Reports to Full council Meeting  

Member Briefings and Member Weekly updates ad hoc communications when required  

Page 69



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    Yes  

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:             Dated:     04/05/2020     

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 70



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings: Bi Monthly    
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:4  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Copeland Community Fund  

Linking in with the councils social inclusion agenda 

The Role of the Copeland Community Fund Board is to contribute to the decision making 
process for large grant requests in line with the socio economic guidelines  

Page 71



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    YES  

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                   Dated: 04/05/2020          

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 72



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Arranged as Required   
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: None 

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Copeland Partnership  

There were no key outcomes during 2019/20 as no meetings were held during the year. 

 

The partnership is a Copeland wide structure that enables the Council to hold the 
Copeland Sustainable Communities Strategy with public, private and third sectors.  
Capacity issues has meant that the Partnership has moved from meeting on a cyclical 
basis to meeting against key agenda items and no meeting was held in 2019/20. 

Page 73



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

The Council should continue to hold the framework structure, although may wish to 
consider how it can use as an annual meeting for key issues under themes, such as social 
inclusion. 

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                             Dated:  04/05/2020        

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

This would be a good structure to use to take forward the Social Inclusion agenda and 
Economic Vision, particularly to support post-Covid-19 recovery. 

 

Page 74



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Quarterly   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 3 

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Cumbria Leadership Board   

Representation on the Board includes all Cumbrian Leaders. LDNP, Police and Crime 
Commissioner and CCG Group representatives also attend  

County wide issues reported and discussed  

The future of Local Government  

Syrian Resettlement programme  

Local Industrial Strategy  

Brexit discussions and preperations  

Information, decisions and discussions papers regularly communicated through member and 
officer briefings and e-mails.  Communications via Members weekly update and included in 
regular portfolio reports to council  

Page 75



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

Yes this Board is a strong voice for the whole of the Borough  

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                            Dated: 05/05/2020        

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

Joint Working within the County is vital at this current time  

Page 76



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Bi-Monthly   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 5  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Cumbria LEP Board 

 Northern Powerhouse  

 Growth Deal  

 Local industrial strategy – working to and recognising the importance of attracting people to 
live, work and invest in the region  

 Carlisle Lake district Airport  

 Cumbrian Coast Line Upgrade Investment  

 Town Deals – working together to support their development  

  Supporting the Cumbria Housing Strategy  

Through Executive Report to Council.  Member briefings/member updates  

Page 77



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    Yes 

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                             Dated:  05/05/2020        

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

Representation of the LEP Board for the North West  will be held by Copeland for 20/21 and 
passed to Allerdale in 2021/22 

Regular telephone call s are held with Allerdale prior to the meetings to guage their views on the 
agenda items up for discussion  

Page 78



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  Quarterly   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 3 

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   Joint Districts Leaders Board  

Cumbria Wide issues are reported and discussed.  Representation on this board includes all 
Cumbrian Local Authority Leaders and Chief Executives.  The Police and Crime Commissioners 
Office and the Cumbrian Clinical Commissioning Group are also represented.   

Issues discussed and debated include:- 

 The Future of Local Government  

 Health and Well Being  

 

Regularly reported through the Executive Report for Council.  Information circulated and included 
Member and Officer Briefings/e-mails   

 

Page 79



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

Yes 

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                          Dated:         04/05/2020 

            
  

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 80



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:  There has been no meetings of this group this year   
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 0 

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   West Cumberland Hospital Stakeholder Group  

The main purpose of this meeting was to oversee and keep informed of phase 1 the hospital 
development.  There have been no meetings this municipal year  

It would be expected that further meetings will possibly take place if and when more development 
takes place   

 

NHS activities are regularly reported via comms and through member briefings  

Page 81



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

Yes as and when appropriate  

 

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                            Dated:    5th May 2020      

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 82



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions 

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 
Frequency of meetings:    
 
Number of meetings attended in 2019/20:  

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given: 

 

 

 
 
 
What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20: 
 
 

 

 

 

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17: 

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well. 

 

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs        

 

Name of Councillor(s): Elected Mayor Mike Starkie    

Name of Outside Body:   West Cumbria Site Stakeholder Group  

Allows elected members and community partners to scrutinise SL, LLWR and the NDA  

Links the community with the whole nuclear industry and nuclear agenda  

Regular reports via Council Executive Report   

Updates provided through members briefings  

Page 83



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21? 

         

 

 

 

 

 

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body     

Yes. Essential  

 

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed:                             Dated:        04/05/20  

            

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.         
          

 

Page 84



Appendix B

Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Carl Walmsley

Name of Outside Body:  Health & Wellbeing Champion

I use my role regularly to get heath and wellbeing related messages out to the public via our 
comma team, local media and my own page Mirehouse Matters 

I believe I have done plenty already using my champion role with my mental health work, links to 
autism (Running a free sensory room) raising much needed awareness in all related fields. I am 
still only finding my feet after the first 12 months and really looking forward to being in a position 
to help more including working alongside other champions. 

No actual meetings in person but I get minutes sent from all local heath groups, committees and 
Well Whitehaven 

0 meetings apart from my own weekly Mind ya marras etc 

Page 85



Appendix B

Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body?  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

In my opinion it’s a must this role continues to have a council member in fact due to everything that 
falls into Health and wellbeing I feel we could have two members representing the role 

Signed: C.Walmsley                         Dated:        15/07/20 

I believe these champion roles are a fantastic way to actually get involved with the Copeland 
residents and show people first hand of the good work the CBC do.

Page 86



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: As and when required. (Please Refer to my comments on page 2.) 

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: 1 formal.

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Doug Wilson

Name of Outside Body:  Small and Medium Enterprises (Champion)

I attended an event which was organised by our local MP. Local businesses were invited to meet 
Business leaders and advisers from the Department of International Trade (DIT) who discussed 
the importance of exporting, how to do it, areas to target and the opportunities on offer.

The meeting was part of the Government’s ‘Exporting is GREAT’ campaign to encourage local 
businesses to take advantage of the global appetite for West Cumbria’s products, skills and 
expertise.

Speakers included DIT advisers, Ivan Baldwin, chairman of Britain’s Energy Coast Business Cluster, 
Export champion Peter Thompson, finance representatives, DIT nuclear specialist Michael Lindsay 
and Rob Johnson, of Cumbria Chamber of Commerce. 

Since the onset of the Covid 19 pandemic the focus has been on assisting and advising particularly 
the smaller businesses on the routes for grant claims and the assistance that Copeland BC has 
been providing during these testing times. My interaction with these organisations has enabled 
me to appreciate the difficulties they are experiencing.  This is particularly impacting upon 
hospitality, retail and personal services where close contact cannot be avoided.  

The feed-back I have received from some of these companies has been particularly heartening, as 
their comments in relation to Copeland’s staff and the help they have given has been particularly 
complimentary.

My main interaction with SMEs has been at a personal level where I have been able to assist in 
resolving problems and queries that arise that are Copeland related. I can relate to these 
businesses as my career has brought me into close contact with a wide variety and types of 
businesses. I have attended 1 formal meeting.

Page 87



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body. 

Yes.  In my opinion, the role is I believe a useful and creative opportunity, providing the role 
continues to receive support from the council.  

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

The concept for the role is evidently warranted but I believe that its purpose and desired outcomes 
need it to be clearly defined and adequately resourced.

Signed: Dated: 21st June 2020        

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

It is evident that the pandemic will be still at the forefront of our minds as we progress into the 
year. I would hope and expect that government through the local authorities will release 
initiatives and incentives to regenerate growth. 

I would wish to have more involvement with growth initiatives as the materialise and hopefully 
see more drive and leadership from Cumbria LEP. 

Page 88



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: Every month, different bodies.

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: Six.

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Jeffrey Hailes

Name of Outside Body:  Young Peoples Champion

Well received by groups as the role Is dependent on what you are prepared to put In!
This champion role Is rewarding and  down to the holder to make contact with many bodies and 
groups.

Page 89



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Submitted by email                         Dated:         1 May 2020

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

I find It rewarding and need  to continue. It would be of great advantage to me for CBC to have a 
supportive plan of work and attendances for me to undertake rather than looking for you’re your 
own work.

Page 90



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Linda Jones-Bulman

Name of Outside Body:  LDP Committee & Elderly Person’s Champion

There have been numerous meetings with the Scrutiny Officer to establish a plan to invite service 
providers to meet and possibly between us find a gap in service provisions in which CBC may be 
able to help fill.

Sadly with the COVID-19 outbreak this endeavour has been temporarily put on hold.

Only recently been put onto the LDP Committee, with only one meeting being held since 
appointment but unable to attend due to connection problems.

Elderly Person’s Champion is a new role that has yet to fully be established.

Page 91



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Yes

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: L.Jones-Bulman                         Dated:         24/07/20

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Establish Elderly Person’s Champion role and build on what has been started.

Page 92



Members on Outside Bodies or Champions

Annual Feedback Form 2019/20

Frequency of meetings: N/A

Number of meetings attended in 2019/20: N/A

Reporting activities undertaken in 2019/20 including type and where feedback given:

What were the key outcomes from your representation on this Outside Body for the 
Council and Copeland residents in 2019/20:

Were there any key risks to mitigate or actions needed by the Council in relation to 
this Outside Body during 2016/17:

The change in legislation under the Homelessness Reduction Act was our key risk over the past year 
because it has meant and increase in people for whom the council owes a duty.   It has also brought 
extensive procedural change and a massive increase in paperwork for staff.  I have kept upto date 
with the team on the introduction and impact of this massive change in homelessness legislation for 
Copeland.  I’m proud and pleased to report that the team have handled the changed very well 
providing a seamless service to customers and that it is now all in place and working well.

Please confirm if the outstanding body you represent CBC on pays or contributes to 
your travel and other costs      

Name of Councillor(s): Sam Pollen

Name of Outside Body:  Homelessness Champion

The role continues to raise awareness of homelessness issues and highlights the outstanding work 
that our officers and partner organisations do for the most vulnerable people in our community.

Reported back internally through Overview & Scrutiny and Full Council with the support and 
assistance of officers.
Reported externally through other public meetings.

Page 93



Do you have any comments or issues from the outside body representation to be 
carried forward into 2020/21?

In your opinion should the Council continue to have member representation on this 
outside body    

Please use this space to provide any comment on your position:

Signed: Submitted by email                         Dated:         6 May 2020

Please email completed form to Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer, by 
Wednesday, 7th May 2020.

Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



OUTSIDE BODIES 2019/20 Council 210519 Item 6 Appendix D

Portfolio Representation

 Outside Body / 
Partnership

Attending Officer Member representative Corporate
Strategy 
Alignment

1 Copeland Community 
Fund

Executive 
Director 

Elected Mayor 
Substitute:  Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities)

Deputy Mayor 
Substitute:  Portfolio Holder (Commercial 
Development)

All Ambitions

2 Greenwich Leisure 
Limited Board - 
Copeland

Executive 
Director 

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities)
Councillor Brian O’Kane

Ambition 3

3 Copeland Partnership Executive 
Director 

Elected Mayor 
Deputy Mayor 

All Ambitions

4 West Cumbria
Community Safety 
Partnership

Executive 
Director

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities) Ambition 1, 3 and 4

5 Cumbria LEP
Partnership Board

None Elected Mayor (West Cumbria representative shared on 
2-year cycle with Allerdale Borough Council)

All Ambitions

6 Cumbria Leadership 
Board

None Elected Mayor
Sub:  Deputy Mayor

All Ambitions

7 Joint District Leaders 
Board

Chief Executive Elected Mayor
Sub:  Deputy Mayor 

All Ambitions

P
age 101



8 Cumbria Housing 
Group

Executive 
Director / 
Strategic Housing 
and Inclusion 
Manager

Portfolio Holder for Environment and Place All Ambitions

9 West Cumberland 
Hospital Stakeholder 
Group

None Elected Mayor
Sub:  Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities)

Ambition 1 and 3

10 Cumbria Public Health 
Alliance 

Executive 
Director 

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities) All Ambitions

11 Cumbria Strategic 
Waste Partnership

Executive 
Director / 
Community 
Services Manager

Portfolio Holder (Commercial Development) All Ambitions

12 Connecting Cumbria None Portfolio Holder (Commercial Development) All ambitions

13 Pensions Forum Chief Finance 
Officer

Elected Mayor Ambition 4 

14 Cumbria Community 
Foundation Board

None Deputy Mayor Ambition 1 and 3

15 BEC Chief Executive Elected Mayor Ambition 1

16 North West Employers Portfolio Holder Ambition 2 and 4

17 NULEAF Portfolio Holder (Nuclear and Corporate Services) Ambition 1

P
age 102



18 The Alliance As Requested Portfolio Holder (Environment and Place) Ambition 1,2 and 3 

19 West Cumbria 
Community Safety 
Partnership

Chief Executive Portfolio Holder
(Inclusive Communities)

Ambition 1,3 and 4 

20 West Cumbria Site 
Stakeholder Group 
(WCSSG)

Chief Executive Elected Mayor 
Councillor Fee Wilson
Councillor Mike McVeigh

21 Voluntary and 
Community Sector 
Liaison Champion 

Executive 
Director

Portfolio Holder (Inclusive Communities) All Ambitions

Member Representation

22 Howgate and 
Distington Partnership

All in Partnership area

23 NE Copeland - NE 
Locality Partnership

All in Partnership area

24 West Locality 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

25 Mid Copeland 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

26 Whitehaven 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

27 South Copeland 
Partnership

All in Partnership area

28 3 Tier Quarterly 
Meetings

Executive 
Director 

Open to all members to attend as agenda dictates All Ambitions

P
age 103



29 WCSSG 
LLWR
Working group

None Councillor Jackie Bowman
Councillor Andy Pratt 
Councillor Gemma Dinsdale

Ambition 1 and 3

30 WCSSG
Spent Fuel 
Management and 
Nuclear Materials 
Working Group

None Councillor Russell Studholme
Councillor John Kane
Independent Councillor TBC

Ambition 1 and 3

31 WCSSG
Risk and Hazard 
Reduction and Waste 
Management Working 
Group

None Councillor Fee Wilson
Councillor Dave Banks
Councillor Sean Cullen

Ambition 1 and 3

32 WCSSG
Environmental Health
Working Group

None Councillor Russell Studholme
Councillor Tom Higgins

Ambition 1 and 3

33 WCSSG
Emergency Planning
Working Group

None Councillor Andy Pratt
Councillor Graham Calvin

Ambition 1 and 3

34 Cumbria Community 
Foundation – West 
Cumbria Grants Panel

None Councillor John Kane
Councillor Fee Wilson

Ambition 1 and 3

35 West Cumbria 
Cycleway Partnership

Strategic Planning 
Manager

Councillor Peter Tyson Ambition 1 and 3

36 Cumbria Health & 
Wellbeing Scrutiny 
Committee

 None Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee or Nominee All Ambitions

37 Lake District National 
Parks Authority

None Councillor Hugh Branney Ambition 3 and 4

P
age 104



38 LEP Scrutiny Chairman of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Ambitions 1 and 3

39 LDNP Partnership Economic 
Development 
Manager

Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman Ambition 1, 3 and 4

40 PCC Panel None Councillor Gemma Dinsdale Ambition 1, 3 and 4

41 Cumbria Local Nature 
Partnership

Councillor Hugh Branney Ambition 1 and 3

42 Armed Forces 
Champion

Councillor Allan Forster Ambition 3

43 Conservation 
Champion

Councillor Graham Calvin All Ambitions

44 Equalities Champion Councillor Jeanette Forster All Ambitions

45 Safeguarding 
Champion

Councillor Fee Wilson All Ambitions

46 Homeless Champion Councillor Sam Pollen Ambition 1, 3 and 4

47 ASB Champion Councillor Eileen Weir Ambition 1, 3 and 4

48 Young People’s 
Champion

Councillor Jeffrey Hailes All Ambitions

49 Older Person’s 
Champion

Councillor Linda Jones-Bulman All Ambitions

50 SME Champion Councillor Doug Wilson Ambition 1, 2 and 4

51 Democracy and 
Engagement Champion

Councillor Andy Pratt Ambition 3 and 4

52 Health and Wellbeing 
Champion

Councillor Carl Walmsley All Ambitions

P
age 105



Local Trusts managed by the Council

53 Whitehaven Maternity 
Trust

Councillor Eileen Weir
Councillor Jeanette Forster
Councillor Charles Maudling 

Ambition 3

54 Pipers Educational 
Trust

Councillor Brian O’Kane Ambition 3

P
age 106



OSC060820

1

CORPORATE STRATEGY 2016-2020 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 
 QUARTER FOUR OF 2019-20

EXECUTIVE MEMBER:  Cllr David Moore

LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, 
Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy

REPORT AUTHOR: Gillian Butterworth, 
Performance and Risk Management Officer

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE? 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the Executive in ensuring that 
the Council complies with its duties of Best Value and value for Money.  It also 
has a key role to play in promoting and monitoring good performance 
management throughout the Council.   

RECOMMENDATION:

a) Note performance against the Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan and KPIs and 
any actions taken to improve compliance with targets. 

b) Make any recommendations for consideration by the Executive

1.        INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Executive have monitored progress against the 2016-2020 
Corporate Strategy through quarterly reporting on the Corporate 
Strategy Delivery Plan (Corporate Plan) and a suite of Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs).

1.2 This report presents an overview of progress and performance for 
Quarter four of 2019/20.  The appendices to this report provide greater 
detail and analysis of key deliverables and KPIs over the last year and 
four year period.  Context and remedial actions are provided where 
these have not been fully achieved.  

Page 107

Agenda Item 10



OSC060820

2

2. PROGRESS AND PERFORMANCE DURING QUARTER FOUR OF 2019/20

2.1 The Corporate Plan 
The Corporate Plan set out twenty Key Deliverables that the Council 
aimed to achieve during 2019/20.  Each Key Deliverable was broken 
down into smaller sub-actions known as ‘Milestones’.

2.2 At the end of Quarter four, 14 out of 20 Key Deliverables were 
completed (70%).  This assessment is based on the number of 
milestones set and achieved for each deliverable.

The remaining six Key Deliverables were more than 50% complete and 
making good progress, but were paused or delayed in Quarter four due 
to the necessary reprioritisation for the council to deliver critical services  
and community support during the Covid19 pandemic.

2.3 Table 1 shows ‘at a glance’ the overall progress and completion of the 
Key Deliverables set for the year 2019/20.  Full details are listed in 
Appendix A

Table 1
Code Title Status Progress

KD 1 Pride of Place-Town Centre Regeneration Scheme  Completed

KD 2 Pride of Place public – Public Realm schemes  Completed

KD 3 High Street Fund  Completed

KD 4 Economic Vision for Copeland Delayed 
(Covid19)

KD 5 Community Led Housing Schemes  Completed

KD 6 Strategic Asset Management Plan   Delayed 
(Covid19)

KD 8 Commercial Infrastructure  Completed

KD 9 Beacon 5 year Business Plan  Overdue

Page 108



OSC060820

3

KD 10 SL Social Impact Plan Delayed 
(Covid19)

KD 11 Beacon Portal for Learning  Completed

KD 12 Work and Skills Programme  Completed

KD 13 Enterprise Initiatives   Delayed 
(Covid19)

KD 14 Domestic Abuse Prevention Project  Completed

KD 15 Copeland Health and Wellbeing Priorities  Completed

KD 16 Strategic Housing Offer  Completed

KD 17 Work Force Development Plan  Completed

KD 18 ICT Strategy  Completed

KD 19 Sustainable Financial Strategy   Delayed 
(Covid19)

KD 20 Bereavement Services Expansion Programme  Some 
rescheduling

KD 21 Accommodation Strategy  Completed

2.4 Key Performance Indicators 
The Council monitored twenty five Key Performance Indicators against 
the 2016-2020 Corporate Strategy.  

2.5 80% of KPIs were on target for the quarter (20 out of 25).  
All ‘corporately owned’ KPIs met their target.  

2.6 88% of KPIs were on target for the year or performed better than the 
same quarter last year (22 out of 25) 

2.7 Table 2 shows ‘at a glance’ which KPIs met their quarterly targets. Full 
details and comparisons over the last 4 years are listed in Appendix B.

Page 109



OSC060820

4

Table 2

Corporately owned Performance Indicators Was 
quarterly 
target met?

KPI 2.1 Additional income generated through Commercial activity 

KPI 3.5 b_ Speed of processing - new CTR claims

KPI 3.1 % Non-domestic Rates Collected

KPI 3.5 a_ Speed of processing - new HB claims

KPI 3.6 a_ Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for HB claims

KPI 3.6 b_ Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for CTR claims

KPI 3.8 % Homeless relief cases resolved in statutory timeframe

KPI 3.9 Domestic Abuse Project – feedback and satisfaction

KPI 4.2 % Freedom of information requests resolved within timescale

KPI 5.1 % 'major' planning applications determined within 13 weeks

KPI 5.2 % 'minor' planning applications determined within 8 weeks

KPI 5.3 % 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks

KPI 5.4 % planning appeals dismissed

NON- corporately owned Performance Indicator

KPI 1.1 % Council Tax collected

KPI 1.2 Number empty homes <6months brought back into use

KPI 1.3 Number of new homes approved

KPI 1.4 Number of new homes built

KPI 1.5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes BUILT

KPI 1.6 Number of larger family and aspirational homes built

KPI 1.7 External funding for Economic Development Secured (£)

KPI 3.2 Number of people supported with employability and skills

KPI 4.1 % complaints resolved at stage one

KPI 4.3 a_ % Household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting  

KPI 4.3 b_ % Reduction in residual household waste

KPI 4.4b % Council TAX collected using Direct Debit payment method

Page 110



OSC060820

5

2.8 Data and trend monitoring
The Council monitored five additional performance trends that were 
relevant to the ambitions of the Corporate Strategy. Figures for Q4 of 
2019/20 were unavailable at the time of reporting and will be included 
in subsequent performance reporting when possible.
Number of empty business premises within the borough.
Number of new businesses within the borough
Number of repeat homelessness case in 2 years
Number of homelessness cases where Welfare Reform is a factor.
Number of Domestic Violence Incidents with a repeat victim.

3.0 CONCLUSIONS

3.1 The Quarter four out-turn position is,
 A combined 70% of Key Deliverables were completed at the end of 

the quarter.  All other Key Deliverables were partially completed and 
making good progress prior to the evoking of the Councils Business 
Continuity Plan in response to the Covid19 pandemic.

 80% of KPIs met their target for the end of Quarter four.
 88% of comparable KPIs exceeded target and or improved or 

maintained performance compared to the same quarter last year.

4.          STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

4.1 Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from this report

4.2 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: This report provides a progress 
update to the Executive on key deliverables arising from the Corporate 
Strategy. There has been some interruption to achievement and 
reporting due to the suspension of business as usual in March whilst the 
Council was responding to the declared emergency of the global 
pandemic. Any legal issues arising from any individual key deliverables 
will be dealt with as appropriate. 

4.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, 2019/20 Budget and 
Capital Plan underpins the 2016-2020 Corporate Strategy

Page 111



OSC060820

6

4.4 EIA Comments:  The Corporate Strategy and Service Plans against which 
performance is measured have undergone Equality Impact Assessments.  
Individual projects and partnership delivery against the Corporate 
Delivery Plan are subject to provide EIAs.

4.5 Policy Framework:  Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules as set 
down in the Council’s Constitution. This report directly reports on the 
delivery of the Corporate Strategy and associated documents.

4.6 Other consultee comments, if any:

5.  APPENDICIES

Appendix A - Corporate Strategy Delivery Plan Report for Q4 of 2019/20

Appendix B - Key Performance Indicator Report for Q4 of 2019/20

Page 112



Appendix A

1

KD 1 Pride of Place-Town Centre Regeneration Scheme

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Establish funding committed/ 
available going forward

Facelift grant process paused to 
ascertain available budget for potential 
re-use grants.

Q2 Agreed Final Year programme Final year programme agreed

Q3 Deliver agreed programme Last of buildings completing this 
financial year

Pride of Place Town 
Centre Regeneration 
Scheme
Within the Pride of Place, 
focus on our population 
centres to work with 
others to increase the use 
of currently empty 
buildings and encourage 
greater occupation of 
current derelict shop 
buildings.

Q4 Annual review The Building Grants scheme has 
continued to deliver across the Borough 
and we have now
Awarded 113 building grants, totalling 
£318,658. Of those awarded 103 are 
now complete,
with the Council paying out £281,289 in 
grants across our borough, attracting 
over £449,403
in private match funds.

Corporate Strategy Key Deliverables – Progress made in Q4 of 2019/20

P
age 113



Appendix A

2

KD 2 Pride of Place public – Public Realm schemes

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note
Overall Progress 
of Key 
Deliverable

Q2 Agreed Public Realm 
schemes for 4 towns

Areas agreed, detailed designs 
being drawn up, although 
Whitehaven and Cleator Moor 
delayed to fit with Future High 
Street Fund and HAZ timescales.

Q4 Complete Cleator 
Moor public realm 
scheme

The scheme for Cleator Moor 
continues to be
discussed and agreed with the 
Town Council and Regen NE 
Copeland for implementation
During 2020. Millom and Egremont 
have asked to revisit their schemes 
linked to their
Potential for Towns Fund and 
Borderlands.

Complete the improvements to public 
realm within our four key towns as 
part of the Pride of Place Initiative 
including a focus on quality street 
cleaning and enforcement activity to 
deliver high quality street scape

Q4 Complete 
Whitehaven public 
realm scheme

Whitehaven public Realm Scheme 
timeframe and composition in line 
with FHSF bid June 2020.

P
age 114



Appendix A

3

KD 3 High Street Fund

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Agreed Whitehaven Vision EOI submitted with agreed vision.  
Successful and invited to develop 
business case for submission in Jan 
2020.

Q2 Q2 – Agreed Town Centre 
priorities in readiness for 
funding applications

Overview of priorities in place, with 
testing against deliverability and 
business case underway

Q4 Draft submission and feedback 
on progress of funding 
applications

Draft submission of outline business 
case now 15th Jan, with feedback 
anticipated by mid-March

High Street Fund
Stronger Towns Fund
LEP Engagement
To work on the future role 
of Town Centres to 
identify additional 
resources and partners to 
engage in developments 
bespoke to each of our 
towns.
All efforts will be made 
through partnership 
activity to identify and use 
external funding to 
maintain momentum on 
town centre improvement 
activity under the CPoP 
initiative

Q4 Preparation of delivery plans 
2021

Plans submitted June 2020
We submitted our draft Business Case 
for FHSF to MHCLG in January and in 
March received
Additional guidance and feedback to 
help us steer our final submission due 
by 5th June 2020.
The programme for Whitehaven is 

P
age 115



Appendix A

4

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

intended to transform the core of the 
town centre with a
Focus on King Street and its links with 
the harbour. The projects are grouped 
under two key
themes “Connecting Whitehaven” 
which will reshape Whitehaven and 
improve the
experience of visiting the town; and 
“Diversifying Whitehaven”, which 
renews the high street
With new uses to drive growth and 
ensure future sustainability.
 

P
age 116



Appendix A

5

KD 4 Economic Vision for Copeland

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Q1 – Review of existing 
evidence and drivers

ARUP commissioned. Work 
commenced and phase 1, to review 
existing evidence and drivers, 
completed.

Q3 Socialisation with partners and 
approval

The stakeholder engagement 
programme is almost complete and an 
early draft is being taken to FOG in 
November.
Members briefing planned for Q4 
however this was paused due to 
Covid19 pandemic.
 

Produce a new Economic 
Vision for Copeland (with 
masterplan) on behalf of 
the Future Opportunities 
Group.

Q4 Implementation of framework
some 
reschedu
ling

Socialisation of framework paused due 
to Covid19 pandemic.  Vision for 
Copeland to be rewritten to include 
post Covid environment and 
considerations. Outline timeframe is Q2 
20-21.

P
age 117

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

6

KD 5 Community Led Housing Schemes

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Q1 - Identification of potential 
new projects

identified key project for CLH is about 
bringing empty homes back into use 
and working group now working to 
explore options

Q2 Business Plans for new 
schemes to Advisory group.

BPs for that period of time were 
submitted and grants supported e.g. 
Distington and Ulpha.

Q3 Q3 - Award funds and project 
milestones agreed – work with 
Homes England and partners to 
draw down funds

Small grant awarded to DBL to assist 
with postal survey. Have discussed 
change to contract with Homes England 
to use funds allocated for empty homes 
community project but funds have not 
yet been drawn down as are claimed in 
arrears

KEY DELIVERABLE 5
Use and maximise the 
Council’s community led 
housing approach and 
fund to impact our Town 
Centres and mitigate for 
any negative impacts of 
second and empty homes
 
Community Led Housing 
Schemes
Identify, develop and 
deliver a number of small 
Community Led Housing 
Schemes (2)
 Q4 Advisory group oversee 

delivery against milestones
Advisory group has continued to meet 
and oversee budget. New group 
interest in Millom to be progressed in 
2020 with drawdown from HE funding, 
but progress delayed to due Covid19.

P
age 118



Appendix A

7

KD 6 Strategic Asset Management Plan

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Strategic Asset Management 
Plan (SAM) - Review of existing 
assets.

The strategic assets available for CAT 
have been reviewed within the full 
asset list.  Other asset categories are 
still in review.

Q2 Sports Centre Development 
Whitehaven Sport Strategy and 
deliverables agreed.

Procurement exercise carried out and 
tender awarded for production of 
Sports Strategy and deliverables.

Q2 Revised SAM Plan agreed. Agreed by Executive September 19 - 
referred to Full Council for adoption

Q3 Implementation of SAM Plan Working to Asset Management Plan  

KEY DELIVERABLE 6
To agree a Strategic Asset 
Management Plan to 
facilitate growth in the 
borough and generate 
investment opportunities 
in the borough.
 
-Asset Management Plan
-Sports Centre 
Development 
-Castle Park Management 
Plan
 

Q4 Castle Park Management Plan 
agreed partial

 Baseline quality assessment completed 
against Green Flag Standard

Park User Survey undertaken 

Love Parks Week Event held to 
promote the park, engage local 
residents and stakeholders, and 

P
age 119

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

8

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

support corporate health & wellbeing 
objectives

Tree pruning works completed and 
felling / crown lifting works to 
completed by end of March

Trading position advertised and 
awaiting notes of interests 

Draft management plan prepared - 
pending next steps

Overall good foundations work and 
progress made however this was  
paused in Q4 due to Business 
Continuity Plan taking priority during 
Covid 19 pandemic

Q4 Sports Centre Development 
Completion of Sports Centre 
Development

delayed
 Progress paused due to Covid 19 
pandemic and Business Continuity Plan 
taking priority. 

P
age 120

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

9

KD 8 Commercial Infrastructure

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Formalisation of Commercial 
priorities and review of current 
operational commercial activity 

Draft Commercial Strategy approved by 
CLT and on Exec agenda 19th August
Council has given approval for 
restructure to recruit a Head of 
Commercial Services position (Q2)

Q2 Assess opportunities for 
commercial investment and 
diversification in other trading 
and non-trading and 
commercial activates.

Commercial engagement group 
established with governance 
arrangements and structure in place. 
Inaugural meeting scheduled for Q3 for 
initial appraisal of commercial leads 
and opportunities.

Q2 Extract cost savings achieved 
through procurement and 
contract mgmt.

Ongoing monitoring and reporting now 
in place to capture cost savings made 
on renewal of contracts

Commercial 
Infrastructure
To continue to operate 
existing key trade services 
on a commercial basis 
with regards to value for 
money, quality and 
competitiveness.
Improve our commercial 
infrastructure to support 
potential for commercial 
activity and support 
increased income.

Q4 Commercialisation of website 
and use of customer portal.

Website refit completed.  Customer’s 
able to make payments and purchases 
of both statutory and commercial 
services offered. 

P
age 121



Appendix A

10

KD 9 Beacon 5 year Business Plan

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Beacon 5 year Business 
Plan
To agree and implement 
second five year 
collaborative commercial 
business plan for the 
Beacon Museum (2019-
2024)

Q4 5 year business plan agreed 
and in place. Based on a Trust 
model which maximises 
benefits regarding NNDR.

partial
Ongoing steering group recognition and 
planning with staff and key partners to 
ensure draft picks up all new 
requirements.  Working with LGA to 
finalise in Q3 20/21

P
age 122

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

11

KD 10 SL Social Impact Plan

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q3 Grant arrangements and 
Annual Programme Agreed

Annual Social Impact Plan grant 
received against agreed action plan for 
19-20

To agree social value 
programme with our 
industrial partners
Sellafield Social Impact 
Plan alignment with 
Council’s Corporate 
Priorities.
TOMS (SL Social Impact 
Themes, Outcomes and 
Measures TOMs)
 

Q4 TOMS Framework in-place and 
adopted by the Council in 
relation to community benefits 
plans

delayed
Work still progressing with SL. Impacted 
by Covid 19P

age 123

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

12

KD 11 Beacon Portal for Learning

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Education Programme for 
2019/20 agreed and 
implemented

Learning programme has been set up to 
end December 2019.  Jan to March 
2020 will be arranged in winter term 
(Oct to Dec 2019

Q2 Delivery of Summer 
programme

Successful delivery with positive 
feedback received.

Q3 Virtual Museum Learning 
Initiative

Contractor commissioned for phase one 
of virtual Beacon Museum.
Expansion of Quantum Leap delivery 
product to be planned for March 2020

Maintain the Beacon 
education and learning 
approach for schools and 
lifelong learning for 
residents and visitors and 
the importance of arts, 
culture and creative 
thinking and skills to 
underpin wellbeing and 
STEAM (science, 
technology, engineering 
arts and maths).
Beacon Portal for 
Learning - Using the 
Beacon Portal as a Portal 
for Learning and 
maintaining the education 
programme with schools

Q4 Development of 2020/21 
programme.

Learning programme for 20/21 
developed. Beacon closed to public and 
programme paused due to Covid19 
Pandemic.

P
age 124



Appendix A

13

KD 12 Work and Skills Programme

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Q1- Funding application for 
new Work and Skills 
Partnership Programme

SL funding secured.  CCF funding 
application submitted.

Q2 Q2 – Design and 
implementation of new Work 
and Skills Programme

 

Work and Skills 
Programme 
Ensure we sustain and 
develop our leadership 
and facilitation of the 
Copeland Work and Skills 
Partnership and its 
continuously developing 
programme of 
complementary 
partnership delivery to 
meet the known gaps in 
service to assist Copeland 
residents develop skills 
and access work 
opportunities.

Q4 Q4 – Annual review. Annual review presented to full Council 
as part of Mayors Report in May 2020

P
age 125



Appendix A

14

KD 13 Enterprise Initiatives

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q3 To agree a programme based 
approach and recruit or 
procure delivery resource.

Commissioned CRED to support 
development of programme and multi-
agency steering group set up for the 
project.

KEY DELIVERABLE 13 
Working in partnership to 
facilitate innovation, 
entrepreneurialism and 
new enterprises.
 
Establish joint programme 
with range of partners to 
drive a package of 
enterprise initiatives, 
supporting sector 
development.

Q4 Agreed priorities/ projects in 3 
year plan and project 
measures. Implement, monitor 
and review

Delayed
 Delayed due to Covid pandemic

P
age 126

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

15

KD 14 Domestic Abuse Prevention Project

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Q1 - 1 additional unit into use 
& deliver outreach services 
from new women’s centre.

Additional unit now secured, totalling 
three units and women’s centre opened 
in July 2019

Q2 Q2 Improve networking and 
partnership holistic approach 
through women’s centre

Sessions were held to identify 
appropriate sessions for partner 
agencies to maximise holistic approach 
for client. Manager has been recruited 
and is now in post and will raise the 
profile of the centre and improve the 
offer. 

Q3 Q3 - Funding bid from any 
external resources available

Funding successfully secured from 
Copeland Community Fund to cover 
officer for three years Jan 2020 to Dec 
2022. Funding from County Council to 
continue into next financial year. 

KEY DELIVERABLE 14
Tackle domestic abuse & 
other exploitations 
through our domestic 
abuse project aimed at 
victims and residents at 
risk.
 
Domestic Abuse Project
Bid for and secure funding 
to continue project 
delivery. Supporting 
residents experiencing or 
at risk of Domestic Abuse.

Q4 Q4 - Extend Project formally – 
dependent on above

New project started Jan 2020 to run to 
Dec 2022

P
age 127



Appendix A

16

KD 15 Copeland Health and Wellbeing Priorities

Action Description Q Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Agreed plan for 
Copeland Health and 
Wellbeing Forum in 
response to Cumbria 
Public Health Strategy

CBC and the Copeland HWB Forum have fully 
engaged in the strategy and implementation 
action plan.  The Copeland actions integrated 
into implementation plan.

Q2 Develop and initiate 
priority projects against 
three priority themes

Funding awarded through CCF for Social 
Prescribing Project.
Healthy Weigh Project being delivered in 
partnership through GLL contract.
Empty Homes Strategy agreed in support of 
Healthy Towns and Places.

Q3 Project monitoring Social Prescriptions funding confirmed and team 
recruitment started. 
Health weight deliverables via out GLL contract.
ICC and GPs have established a team to work 
with professional medical /care provision to 
promote effective cross sector working.

Copeland Health and 
Wellbeing Priorities
KEY DELIVERABLE 15
To be a strong partner in 
the Copeland Health and 
Wellbeing Forum and 
demonstrate our essential 
role in supporting the 
Health and Wellbeing of 
our residents.

Key Projects
• Healthy Weight Project 
• Social Prescribing 
Project 
• Healthy Towns And 
Places Project 

Q4 Q4 – Annual review of 
projects.

Annual report to Executive 16th March 2020

P
age 128



Appendix A

17

KD 16 Strategic Housing Offer

Action Description Q Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Approval Housing 
Strategy and Action 
Plan.

Housing Strategy approved by Full Council and action 
plan still with Director of Growth and Inclusive 
Communities for final approval

Q3 Implementation of 
the Housing Strategy 
Action Plan.

Strategy been approved by full council, action plan 
currently being socialised and refined in line with new 
strategy

KEY DELIVERABLE 16
Ensure that our 
housing offer meets 
the need of residents
Extra Care (Housing 
Proposals)
Better Care Fund
Planning Permission 
Local Plan and KPIs
DFGs

Q4 Review of Housing 
needs and DFG 
provision.

Housing Needs Survey commissioned and final report 
due back July 2020 (delayed due to COVID). Housing 
Renewals team restructured to put a team leader in 
place to manage team and oversee DFG delivery and 
performance. Approval granted By Exec in March 2020 
to raise discretionary limit on DFGs from £5k to £10k 
where full cost is over £30k; conduct a means test for 
child cases where cost is over £30k and to apply a 5% 
management charge to all grants to cover 
administration costs. 

P
age 129



Appendix A

18

KD 17 Work Force Development Plan

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q2 Q2 – Workforce Review Workforce Review complete and 
Strategy in Draft.  To gain approval at 
CLT, Personnel Panel and Executive.

Q3 Work Force Development Plan 
agreed & in place.

 

KEY DELIVERABLE 17
Implementing our new 
ten-year Workforce 
Development Plan with its 
focus on quality training 
and succession planning 
and our commitment to 
be an employer of choice 
in our local area.
Work Force Development 
Plan
Approval and 
implementation of the 
year 1 action plan for 
work force development

Q4 Q4 – Monitoring and review 
of action plan.

Workforce plan and monitoring by CLT 
in place. 

P
age 130



Appendix A

19

KD 18 ICT Strategy

Action Description Q Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q3 ICT Strategy - Final 
draft agreed

[1-JAN] Draft ICT Strategy was circulated to CLT for 
review at end of NOV-2019. Awaiting formal CLT 
review session.
ICT Strategy put back to Q3 due to prioritisation in 
Q1 and Q2 on PSN achievement of PSN Compliance 
and staff restructuring.
ICT Strategy is in process of being drafted. Key 
research into hosted and cloud options has been 
underway to consider IT architecture options for 
future platforms.
IDOX project in contractual dispute. Priorities 
informed by new ICT Strategy.

KEY DELIVERABLE 18
Deliver the 
implementation plan of 
our ICT strategy
 
Approval and 
implementation of
ICT Strategy.
Digital Portals
Website
IDOX

Q4 ICT Programme Plan 
agreed and 
implemented

A draft action plan was delayed due to the BCP 
operating for Covid.
Plan implementation resumed in Q2 20/21.  
Implementation of a number of elements have 
already started to action as a direct consequence of 
the changes forced upon us by the coronavirus 
response.

P
age 131



Appendix A

20

KD 19 Sustainable Financial Strategy

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q3 Q2 - Develop and draft 
Financially sustainable options 
for sustainable Long Term 
Financial Strategy, Capital 
Programme for discussion with 
the Executive.

Finance update provided to the 
September Executive. Working with the 
Mayor on his budget to present to the 
Executive in January 2020 and 
approved by Council in Feb.

To Develop a financially 
sustainable Medium Term 
Financial Strategy for 
2020/21-2023/24
Capital Programme and 
Treasury Management 
Strategy. Q4 Respond to any Fair Funding or 

Business Rates technical 
consultations and lobby 
Government setting out the 
clear financial case for 
improved funding for CBC.

Completed as far as possible by CBC. 
Review paused by Central Government 
due to Covid19 pandemic.

P
age 132



Appendix A

21

KD 20 Bereavement Services Expansion Programme

Action Description Q Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q1 Planning permission for 
refurbishment of 
Crematorium and 
Installation of second 
cremator commenced.

Planning application submitted 
Installation of second cremator completed in July 
2019.

Q2 Installation of second 
cremator completed. 
Whitehaven Cemetery 
expansion plans for 
decision.

Installation of new second cremator now 
completed and operational Executive Report on 
expansion plans for Whitehaven Cemetery 
completed with input from CLT and due to be 
considered and approved by Executive on 7 
October – funding already approved and within 
2019/20 Capital Programme

KEY DELIVERABLE 20
To deliver the investment 
and development of our 
Bereavement Services.
 
Bereavement Services 
Expansion Programme
Refurbishment of the 
Crematorium, installation 
of second cremator and 
expansion of Whitehaven 
Cemetery

Q4 Refurbishment of 
Crematorium 
completed

some 
rescheduling

Current programme suspended due to 
Coronavirus pandemic.  A refreshed programme 
of building improvements being prepared to 
align with new building survey

P
age 133

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=Q1ZoF7Fe&id=DEA3B319767B80B5DEF18E943BFF92F7462FB84C&thid=OIP.Q1ZoF7FecWCSVG1pUHV0ngHaHa&mediaurl=https%3a%2f%2fcdn.pixabay.com%2fphoto%2f2014%2f01%2f29%2f05%2f46%2fright-254091_960_720.png&exph=720&expw=720&q=amber+right+pointing+arrow&simid=607994448624093615&selectedIndex=0


Appendix A

22

KD 21 Accommodation Strategy

Action Description Quarter Milestone Outcome Note

Overall 
Progress of 
Key 
Deliverable

Q2 Q2 Accommodations Strategy 
milestones met

PFI termination planned for Q4Deliver the councils 
accommodation strategy 
to ensure CBC 
accommodation is fit for 
purpose and affordable.

Q4 Q4 Accommodations Strategy 
milestones met

At the end of March 2020 the Copeland 
Building became part of the Copeland 
Borough Council Estate.  Work on 
building renovations planned to 
commence in Q1 2020
 

 

P
age 134



Appendix A

23

Code Title Status Progress

KD 1 Pride of Place-Town Centre Regeneration Scheme  Completed

KD 2 Pride of Place public – Public Realm schemes  Completed

KD 3 High Street Fund  Completed

KD 4 Economic Vision for Copeland Delayed (Covid19)

KD 5 Community Led Housing Schemes  Completed

KD 6 Strategic Asset Management Plan   Delayed (Covid19)

KD 8 Commercial Infrastructure  Completed

KD 9 Beacon 5 year Business Plan  Overdue

KD 10 SL Social Impact Plan Delayed (Covid19)

KD 11 Beacon Portal for Learning  Completed

KD 12 Work and Skills Programme  Completed

KD 13 Enterprise Initiatives   Delayed (Covid19)

KD 14 Domestic Abuse Prevention Project  Completed

KD 15 Copeland Health and Wellbeing Priorities  Completed

KD 16 Strategic Housing Offer  Completed

KD 17 Work Force Development Plan  Completed

KD 18 ICT Strategy  Completed

KD 19 Sustainable Financial Strategy   Delayed (Covid19)

KD 20 Bereavement Services Expansion Programme  Some rescheduling

KD 21 Accommodation Strategy  Completed

P
age 135



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

Key Performance Indicators – 2016 – 2020

KPI 1.1 Percentage of Council Tax collected

Comment:
The slight reduction in collection rates in 2017/18 were due to 
the impact of the cyber-attack. 

In 2019/20 the Council achieved an ‘in year collection rate’ of 
97.15%, this is above the target set for the year (locally) and 
above the national average ‘in year collection rate’ of 96.8%.

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 

to previous 
year

2016/17 97.70% 97.77% -.73%

2017/18 98.30% 94.49% -3.81%

2018/19 95.00% 97.05% 2.05%

2019/20 95.00% 97.15% 2.15%P
age 137



Appendix B

KPI 1.2 Number empty homes <6months brought back into use.

This KPI was introduced in 2017. 
84 homes were brought back into use across Copeland up to 
Q3 in 2019/20, bringing the total 195 homes over the three 
year period.
Figures for Q4 2019/20 are not available at the time of 
reporting due to prioritisation of critical service delivery and 
community resilience amidst the Covid 19 pandemic, however 
84 homes brought back into use is well above the target set for 
the year and shows a 133% increase on the number achieved in 
2017/18.

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared to 
previous year

2017/18 35 36 1

2018/19 35 75 40

2019/20 50 84 34

P
age 138



Appendix B

KPI 1.3  Number of new homes approved

Total new homes approved in 2019/20 is 280 against an 
annual target of 300, this is a provisional figure at the time 
of reporting.
If combined, a total of 1201 new homes were approved in 
Copeland across the three year period of 2017 to 2020, this 
is 371 more than the combined target, across the three 
years, of 830. 
Note: figure is gross and therefore includes both new builds 
and change of use e.g. a larger home that is split into two.

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 

to 
previous 

year

2017/18 230 478 248

2018/19 300 443 143

2019/20 300 280 -20

P
age 139



Appendix B

KPI 1.4  Number of new homes built
Total of 512 new home completed in the period 2016-2020.  Planning permission has been granted for more homes than 
have been built. Council officers have worked to attract new developers into the borough and build on these sites.  It is 
expected that in the next few years these new house builders will start to build in the borough.
The target for 2020/21 will be to 140 new home built, this is based on the Copeland Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment that was carried out in 2019.

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual
Value 

vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 

to previous 
year

2016/17 230 129 -101

2017/18 230 112 -118

2018/19 300 120 -180

2019/20 300 151 -149

P
age 140



Appendix B

KPI 1.5 Number of affordable homes built
This KPI is dependent upon external agents or their actions.  54 affordable homes were approved in 2018/19 so it is 
expected that those will progress to being built over the next couple of years.

Note: Affordable homes APPROVED 16/17=12, 17/18=2, 
18/19=54, 19/20=0

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 

to 
previous 

year

2016/17 35 4 -31

2017/18 35 17 -18

2018/19 45 0 -45

2019/20 45 4 -41

P
age 141



Appendix B

KPI 1.6  Number of larger family and aspirational homes built

A total of 222 larger family home were built in the period 2016-
2020.  
67 larger family and aspirational homes built in 2019/20 is 22 
more than the target and represents an increase of 294% on 
the number built in 2016/17 (17)

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 
to 
previous 
year

2016/17 35 17 -18

2017/18 35 43 8

2018/19 45 45 0

2019/20 45 67 22

P
age 142



Appendix B

KPI 1.7 External funding for Economic Development Secured

Since 2017/18 £10,498,737.00 external funding has been secured 
for the economic development of the Copeland.  This has been 
secured through many channels including the LEP Growth Deal, 
Well Whitehaven Programme, Coastal Development Fund, Work 
and Skills Partnership, Copeland Pride of Place Public Realms 
Scheme, Copeland Pride Of Place Keeping Copeland Clean, 
Cumbria’s Hidden Coast, Tourism Development, Enterprise 
Development, Beacon Virtual Museum.

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 
to 
previous 
year

2017/18 £750000.00 £5050000.00 £4300000.00

2018/19 £500000.00 £2863828.00 £2363828.00

2019/20 £500000.00 £2584909.00 £2084909.00

 

P
age 143



Appendix B

KPI 2.1 Additional income generated through Commercial activity

Did 
the KPI 

hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 

to 
previous 

year

2017/18 £139000.00 £43104.00 -£95896.00

2018/19 £139000.00 £110938.00 -£28062.00

2019/20 £139000.00

KPI 2.1 Additional income generated through Commercial activity
This was an early year’s commercial target introduced in 2017/18 which shows the net increase in income of 6 cost 
centres, namely Trade Waste, Advertising and Sponsorship, Parks Parishes and Small Works, Markets and Car Parks.   The 
target was set and remained at £139000.00 throughout the period 2017/18 to 2019/20.  At the time of reporting the it is 
annual outturn for these cost centres is not available due to impact of the covid19 pandemic on officer time, however it is 
expected that the £139000 target has been met through the listed cost centres and increased income from our expanded 
Bereavement Services offer.  Any other anticipated or known loss of commercial income as a result of the pandemic has 
been highlighted in financial returns to MHCLG.
 
Over the period 2016/17 and 2019/20 much has been achieved towards our ambition to become a commercial council, 
starting with the recruitment of key and specialised lead officers and the refresh and launch of the Commercial Strategy.  
There has been a focus on embedding a commercial culture across the whole organisation including identifying 
commercial opportunities, partnership delivery and cost savings as part of the annual service planning process.   
Commercial culture and behaviours has been reinforced with a focus on increased productivity through the 5 Ps 

P
age 144



Appendix B

Personnel Development Programme, and a proactive approach to achieving contact savings via the Contract 
Management and Procurement Strategy.   Officers and Members have attended training provided by CIPFA on creating a 
commercial culture, commercial delivery models and risk management. The ‘my bright ideas’ commercial suggestions 
schemes and monthly commercial newsletter were launched and a number of cost saving, process efficiency and income 
generating ideas were submitted by officer and members. The Commercial Engagement Group and Board were 
established and governance arrangements put in place and prior to the Covid19 pandemic a number of business cases 
were being reviewed. 
During the period 2016-2020 commercial activity has also been increase through improved digital payment options on 
our website, expansion of our Trade Waste customer base, progression of the Bereavement Services Investment 
programme and the launched a Pest Control Service. Opportunity for shared service procurement and delivery are also 
being explored.

P
age 145



Appendix B

KPI 3.1 Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected.
In 2019/20 the council  achieved an ‘in year collection rate of 99.2% of, this was above our target of 98.7% and above the 
national average for all local authorities which was 98%

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 
to 
previous 
year

2016/17 30.39%

2017/18 99.30% 98.68% -.62%

2018/19 98.70% 89.19% -9.51%

2019/20 98.70% 99.20% .50%

KPI 3.2 Local people supported with employability and skills 

Did the KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs Target

2019/20 65 83 18

P
age 146



Appendix B

KPI 3.5 a_ Speed of processing new Housing Benefit claims  

The average time taken to process a new Housing Benefit claim for 
during quarter Q4 of 2019/20 was 8.71 days, this is a reduction of 15 
days from the 2016/17 figure.  This is also 8 days quicker than the 
national average for all local authorities which was 16 calendar days in 
2019/20

Did the KPI 
hit target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 

to previous 
year

2016/17 20 23.66 3.66

2017/18 22 37.3 15.3

2018/19 22 20.42 -1.58

2019/20 18 8.71 -9.29

P
age 147



Appendix B

KPI 3.5 b_ Speed of processing - new CTR claims

The average time taken to process and new Council Tax 
reduction claim was 17.12 days in Q4 of 2019/29, this is a 
below the current target of 18 days and a significant reduction 
from 37 days in 2017/18 when processing times were impacted 
greatly by the cyber-attack.  

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compare
d to 
previous 
year

2016/17 20 23.66 3.66

2017/18 22 37.3 15.3

2018/19 22 27.39 5.39

2019/20 18 17.12 -0.88

P
age 148



Appendix B

KPI 3.6 a_ Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for HB claims

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 
compared 
to 
previous 
year

2016/17 10 9.31 -0.69

2017/18 10 22.61 12.61

2018/19 10 7.84 -2.16

2019/20 10 3.26 -6.74

The average time taken to process a housing benefits change 
of circumstances at the end of Q4 2019/20 was 3.26 days, this 
is below the target of 10 days, and below the national average 
for all local authorities which was 6 days in 2019/20.  

As a result of the cyber-attack and welfare reforms in 2017/18 
the time to process housing benefits change of circumstances 
reached a high of 22 days, current processing times represent a 
reduction of 19 days.

P
age 149



Appendix B

KPI 3.6 b_ Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for Council Tax Reduction claims

Current speed of processing for changes of circumstances for 
Council Tax Reduction claims is 6.11 days, this is below target 
and the lowest it has been since 2016/17

As a result of the cyber-attack and welfare reforms in 2017/18 
the time to process changes of circumstances for Council Tax 
Reduction claims reached a high of 22 days, current processing 
times represent a reduction of 16 days.

Did the KPI 
hit target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend compared 
to previous year

2016/17 10 9.31 -0.69

2017/18 10 22.61 12.61

2018/19 10 10.52 0.52

2019/20 10 6.11 -3.89

P
age 150



Appendix B

KPI 3.9 Domestic Abuse Project

This project offers support and signposting for people 
experiencing domestic violence and abuse.  Working discretely 
with clients and closely with other support organisations.  
In 2019/20 100% of those that engaged with the service said 
they were glad that they did and gain appropriate advice and 
support.

Did the KPI 
hit target

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 

2018/19 95:% 99:% 4:%

2019/20 90:% 100:% 10:%

KPI 3.8 Homeless relief cases

% of homeless relief cases resolved within target timeframe of 
56 days was introduced as a statutory measure following the 
introduction of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017.  Figures 
at the end of Q4 2019/20 show that homelessness duty is 
carried out within the statutory 52 days in 92.8% of cases, this 
is below the above the target of 90%

Did the KPI 
hit target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 

2018/19 90% 91.9% 1.9%

2019/20 90% 92.8% 2.8%

P
age 151



Appendix B

KPI 4.1 Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one  

95% of complaints were resolved at stage 1 in 
2019/20, this is above the target of 90% and has 
been consistently so since 2017/28

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value 
vs 
Target

Trend 

2016/17 90.00% 89.50% -.50%

2017/18 90.00% 92.00% 2.00%

2018/19 90.00% 96.25% 6.25%

2019/20 90.00% 95.75% 5.75%

P
age 152



Appendix B

KPI 4.2 Percentage of Freedom of information requests resolved within timescale  

The annual average percentage of FOI requests resolved 
within the 20 day timescale is 86.7%%, however 
performance in Q4 was 94.4% which was above target.  

Response time increased year on year between 2016/17 
and 2018/19, these were then impacted by a period in 
2019/20 where the DPO post was waiting to be filled and 
FOIs were being actioned by existing staff members in 
addition to their own duties.  Quarterly FOI response times 
in 2019/20 have exceeded target in since Sept 2019 when 
the DPO post was filled.

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value 
vs 

Target

Trend Total 
FOIs 

received 

2016/17 90.00% 85.50% -4.50% 684

2017/18 90.00% 86.75% -3.25% 772

2018/19 90.00% 87.92% -2.08% 904

2019/20 90.00% 86.71% -3.29% 817

P
age 153



Appendix B

KPI 4.3 a_ Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting

This KPI is impacted by the cessation of the garden waste 
collection from October to March, therefor reducing the 
amount of waste that can be diverted from landfill in quarters 
three and four each year. Although the average target of 35% 
was not for the year, it was met in the first two quarters of the 
year.

Did the KPI 
hit target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 

2016/17 35.00% 32.48% -2.52%

2017/18 35.00% 32.64% -2.36%

2018/19 40.00% 36.60% -3.40%

2019/20 43.00% 36.10% -6.90%

P
age 154



Appendix B

KPI 4.3 b_ Percentage reduction in residual household waste

This KPI currently measures tonnage of residual household 
waste, however the figures recorded do not take into account 
the number of new homes built and serviced.  Of which we 
know there were 84 brought back into use and 151 built in 
2019/20 alone.  For the financial year 2020/21 onwards this KPI 
will be replaced by one that measures % reduction of residual 
household waste collected per household.

Did the KPI 
hit target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 

2018/19 6% 6.28% 0.28%

2019/20 5% -1.25%

Following the launch of the kerbside recycling scheme in 
2018/19 there was a marked reduction in the amount of 
residual household waste collected (tonnes), as expected 
this has now levelled and in Quarter three an increase 
was recorded in the amount of residual household waste 
collected. 
This KPI is dependent on the behaviour of others, 
however for our part, Copeland continue to actively 
promote waste minimisation and reuse schemes across 
the borough in line with local and central government 
policy.

KPI 4.4b Percentage CTAX payed using DDeb payment method

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 

2018/19 60% 61.85% 1.85%

2019/20 60% 62.47% 2.47%

P
age 155



Appendix B

KPI 5.1 Percentage of 'major' planning applications determined within 13 weeks

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value 
vs 

Target

Trend 

2016/17 80.00% 88.75% 8.75%

2017/18 65.00% 100.00% 35.00%

2018/19 65.00% 100.00% 35.00%

2019/20 65.00% 100.00% 35.00%  

KPI 5.2 Percentage of planning 'minor' planning applications determined within 8 weeks

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 

2016/17 80.00% 87.78% 7.78%

2017/18 80.00% 96.46% 16.46%

2018/19 80.00% 97.77% 17.77%

2019/20 80.00% 98.31% 18.31%

P
age 156



Appendix B

KPI 5.3 Percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 

2016/17 80.00% 100.00% 20.00%

2017/18 80.00% 95.70% 15.71%

2018/19 80.00% 97.63% 17.63%

2019/20 80.00% 98.91% 18.91%

KPI 5.4 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed 

Did the 
KPI hit 
target?

Target Actual Value vs 
Target

Trend 

2016/17

2017/18 70.00% 100.00% 30.00%

2018/19 100.00% 100.00% .00%

2019/20 80.00% 86.00% 6.00%

P
age 157



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 060820

PORTFOLIO HOLDER
LEAD OFFICER:

Cllr David Moore
Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE?
This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the latest 
budget monitoring report to the Executive; included as Appendix A.

SUMMARY:
This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the 
2019/20 provisional outturn budget monitoring report presented to the 
Executive on 21st July 2020; included as Appendix A.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 

1. Note the provisional outturn budget monitoring report to the Executive 
attached.

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee receive the quarterly budget 
monitoring reports to the Executive for consideration. 

2. CONCLUSIONS

2.1. The Committee is asked to note the report.

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

3.1. Legal and Monitoring Officer’s comments are: No legal issues 
arise from the report.

3.2. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the 
attached report.

3.3. EIA Comments: N/A

Page 159

Agenda Item 11



3.4. Policy Framework: N/A

3.5. Other consultee comments, if any: N/A

List of Appendices 

Appendix A – Latest quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive.

Page 160



Appendix A

2019/20 Revenue & Capital Budget Monitoring Report – Provisional 
Outturn

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Mayor Mike Starkie (Portfolio Holder for Finance).
LEAD OFFICER: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources.
REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources.

SUMMARY:

This Provisional Outturn report sets out the year-end results against the 
Council’s Revenue and Capital Budgets for the 2019/20 financial year.

RECOMMENDATION:

1. Note the 2019/20 Provisional Revenue Outturn of a £517k net 
overspend, (See Paragraph 1.2 and Appendix A); 

2. Note the summary of the revenue outturn variances (See Paragraph 1.4 
and Appendix A); 

3. Approve the budget carry forward requests of £266k and transfers from 
reserves (See Paragraph 1.6 and Appendix B); 

4. Note the provisional capital outturn for 2019/20 (See Paragraph 1.14); 
and

5. Recommend to Council programming changes and amendments to the 
2020/21 Capital Programme following the provisional outturn for 
2019/20 (See Paragraph 1.15).                                                                              

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. This report contains information on the Provisional Outturn position 
on spending against the Council’s Revenue Budget for 2019/20. The 
figures shown in this report are provisional and remain subject to 
change following completion of the 2017/18, 2018/19 and 2019/20 
Draft Statement of Accounts and the subsequent external audit.

Page 161



1.2. The Net Revenue Budget agreed by Council on 5th February 2019 for 
2019/20 was £8,798k; this includes a transfer from the General Fund 
of £227k. The table below summarises the provisional outturn 
position on spending against the Council’s Revenue Budget for 
2019/20.

Directorate £’000 Budget Provisional 
Outturn Variance Q3 

Variance
Chief Executive 4,120 4,074 27 (268)
Operations 4,674 5,905 1,154 1,184
Subtotal 8,794 9,979 1,181 916
Sources of Finance (8,798) (9,462) (664) (620)
Grand Total 8,786 517 517 296

1.3. The Provisional Outturn for the Council shows a provisional net 
overspend of £517k. The overspend is made up of an overspend 
against the directorate budgets of £1,181k, offset by increased 
sources of funding of (£664k). This is an increase in the Q3 forecast 
overspend. 

1.4. The impact of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has had a significant 
impact on the Council’s finances and started to be felt before the 
introduction of the lockdown on the 23rd March 2020 and has 
contributed to the overspend against the directorate budgets; 
variances over £100k are summarised in the following paragraphs, 
with Appendix A showing all service areas within each Directorate.

Directorate / Service £’000 Provisional 
Outturn Q3 Variance

Beacon Museum 106 145
Business Support (ICT) 355 165
Refuse & Recycling 493 437
Revenues & Benefits 102 339
Other (Net Total) (125) (170)
Total 1,181 916

Page 162



1.5. A summary of the main variances are summarised below:

a) Beacon Museum; The overspend of £106k is largely due to a 
shortfall in income against budget of £112k (Sales £20k, Room Hire 
£29k and Admissions £63k). The Beacon reserve was fully utilised in 
2018/19 and therefore the overspend will be met from the Council’s 
General Reserve. 

b) Business Support (ICT); The overspend of £355k primarily 
relates to staffing of £153k and licences and Network costs of £176k; 
implementation of the new ICT Strategy will rationalise and thus 
reduce expenditure in this area.

c) Refuse and Recycling; The overspend of £493k is higher than at 
Q3 but this is largely due to the impact of COVID19 in March, the 
main factors for the overspend are set out below:

- The recycling service had a shortfall in income of £204k 
compared to budget due to lower income from the sales of recyclates 
and lower than budgeted tonnes of recycling resulting in lower 
Recycling Credits income.

- Staffing costs across all waste services (Domestic, commercial 
& recycling) overspent by £73k.

- There is a £62k pressure in the car parks budget due to higher 
business rates; and

- Car Parks had a shortfall in income of £80k compared to 
budget, this has been affected by an increased range of pop up car 
parks in the area.

Carry forward of Budget Underspends and Use of Earmarked 
Reserves

1.6. Budget underspends totalling £266k have been requested to be 
carried forward and are included in Appendix B, these have been 
assumed to be approved within this provisional outturn report, if not 
approved the overspend would be reduced accordingly. Appendix B 
also sets out the use of reserves during 2019/20.

Page 163



2019/20 Efficiency Plan

1.7. The 2019/20 Budget agreed by Council identified £591k of 
efficiencies required to balance the budget. The position against 
these for the year is set out in the table below:

Efficiencies £’000  Budget Provisional 
Outturn Variance

Fees & Charges (122) (122) 0
Members Allowances (52) (52) 0
Pensions fund savings from upfront 
payment in 2017/18 (final year) (67) (67) 0

External funding (350) 0 350
Total (591) (241) 350

Sources of Finance

1.8. Financing of the Council’s net Revenue budget of £8,798k is set out 
below. As set out in previous budget monitoring reports there is 
additional funding of £500k from earmarked reserves, following a 
review of the planned usage of reserves over the period of the 
medium term financial strategy, and an additional £120k of business 
rates pooling income estimated. This will be finalised as part of the 
production of the financial statements. Also an additional grant of 
£44k was received relating to the Government’s Emergency COVID19 
Funding package for local authorities.

Sources of Finance £’000  Budget Provisional 
Outturn Variance

Council Tax Income (4,334) (4,334) 0
Business Rates Retained Income (2,789) (2,909) (120)
Revenue Support Grant (39) (39) 0
New Homes Bonus (125) (125) 0
PFI Grant (837) (837) 0
Other Grants (447) (491) 44
Use of General Reserve (227) (227) 0

Page 164



Sources of Finance £’000  Budget Provisional 
Outturn Variance

Earmarked Reserves 0 (500) (500)
Total Sources of Finance (8,798) (9,418) (664)

General Reserves

1.9. The General Fund Reserve as at the 1st April 2019 was £2,969k, the 
table below sets out the changes to the General Fund to 31st March 
2020:

£’000
Balance as at 1st April 2019 (based on the unaudited 
positon)

(2,932)

Budgeted transfer to support 2019/20 budget 227
Provisional Outturn for 2019/20 517
Balance as at 31st March 2020 (2,188)
Minimum level agreed by Council (Feb 2020) (2,000)

1.10. The General Reserve balance is above the minimum level of £2m 
agreed by Council in February 2020. 

Irrecoverable Debts

1.11. The Financial Regulations and Corporate Debt Recovery Policy set out 
the process and limitations for writing off irrecoverable debts. The 
following table summarises the debts written off during the year by 
the Chief Finance Officer. It is crucial that old debts do not block the 
system of debt recovery and regular reviewing of debts must be 
carried out. All of the debts below are provided for in the Bad Debt 
provision and therefore there is no impact on the Councils budgets in 
the year. 

1.12. A summary of the Debts written off is set out below along with the 
number in brackets.

Page 165



Council Tax Business 
Rates

Housing 
Benefit Over 

Payments

Sundry 
Debts Total

109,580.48
(236)

17,697.23
(48)

40,436.76
(88)

2,220.59
(32)

169,935.06
(404)

1.13. Both Council Tax and Business Rates write offs cover all preceptors 
not just Copeland; for example 13% of the Council Tax write offs 
relate to CBC. The Council Tax write offs are higher than expected 
because of a high proportion of debt relief orders received in 
2019/20. There are various reasons why debts are written off; due to 
deceased, bankruptcy, Dissolution of businesses, liquidation, unable 
to trace etc. 

Capital Budget

1.14. Council approved a Revised Capital Programme for 2019/20 of 
£1,955k at its meeting on 10th February 2020, this has been updated 
below with the Capital Grant received from MHCLG for the 
termination of the PFI contract on 31st March 2020 (approved by 
Council in December 2019). The Provisional Outturn is set out in the 
table below:

Project £’000  Revised 
Budget

Provisional 
Outturn Variance

Bereavement Services 1,000 836 164
Disabled Facilities Grants 557 550 7
Town Centre Regeneration 200 137 63
Beacon Virtual Museum 100 93 7
IT Infrastructure 98 126 (28)
Sub Total 1,955 1,742 213
Copeland Centre PFI 5,066 4,822 244
Total 7,021 6,564 457

Page 166



1.15. The variances against the capital programme was £457k. The 
Executive is asked to recommend to Council that the revised capital 
programme for 2020/21 is amended to include the above variances.

Treasury Management

1.16. The Treasury Management function supports the overall objectives 
and priorities of the Council, by the use of effective treasury 
management techniques. The aim is to manage risks and ensure 
there are sufficient cash resources and long-term borrowings to 
finance the Council’s activities and capital investment programme 
whilst balancing this to the secondary objective of trying to minimise 
the costs of the net interest budget. 

1.17. Long term borrowing remains at £5m (£5m at Q3) and investments 
are £29m as at 31st March. There is a net interest cost to the Council, 
this is due to interest on the loan being c7.5% and investment 
interest being around 0.5%.  

1.18. The Council undertook no new borrowing during 2019/20 in 
accordance with the 2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy. 

2. CONCLUSIONS

2.1. The recommendations allow the preparation of the statutory 
financial statements of the Council.

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS 

3.1. Legal/ Monitoring Officer’s Comments are: No legal issues arise from 
the report.

3.2. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are contained within the report.

3.3. EIA Comments: Not applicable. 

3.4. Policy Framework: Not applicable.

3.5. Other Consultee Comments, if any: None.

4. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

Page 167



4.1. Contained within the report

5. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE 
THE RISKS GOING TO BE MANAGED?

5.1. The proposals will be managed by Director of Financial Resources.

6. WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM THIS 
REPORT?

6.1. Contained within the body of the report.

List of Appendices 

Appendix A: 2019/20 Provisional Outturn by Service
Appendix B: Carry forward of Budget Underspends and Use of Earmarked 
Reserves

List of Background Documents:

None

 

Page 168



Appendix A
2019/20 Provisional Outturn by Service

Directorate Department
Budget 
£'000

Actual 
£'000

Variance 
£'000

Q3 
Variance 

£'000
Chief Executive Building Control 96 156 60 36

Chief Executive 402 361 (40) (43)
Communications 119 115 (4) (2)
Democratic Services 424 465 41 8
Development Control 23 (17) (39) (31)
Dir Corp Serv & Comm Strategy 290 238 (52) (36)
Elections 121 77 (44) (24)
Environmental Health 525 526 2 (29)
Financial Services 860 816 (43) (50)
Internal Audit 132 94 (39) (39)
Legal & Procurement Services 196 189 (7) 0
Nuclear (127) (17) 110 (50)
Property & Estates 787 879 92 (4)
Strategic Planning 201 193 (9) (3)

Chief Executive 
Total

4,047 4,074 27 (268)

Executive 
Director - 

Beacon Museum 167 273 106 145

Business Support 861 1,215 355 165
Copeland Community Fund 0 0 (0) 0
Customer Services 306 315 8 10
Economic Development 235 276 41 16
Executive Director of Operations 144 221 77 9
Head of Corporate Resources 62 71 9 9
Human Resources 321 323 2 (33)
Park & Open Spaces (33) (34) (1) 101
Refuse & Recycling 1,813 2,306 493 437
Revenues & Benefits 370 472 102 339
Strategic Housing 507 468 (39) (15)

Executive Director - 
Operations Total

4,751 5,905 1,154 1,184

Grand Total 8,798 9,979 1,181 916  

Page 169



Appendix B

Carry forward of Budget Underspends and Use of Earmarked Reserves

Carry forward of Budget Underspends

Service £ Comment
Human 
Resources

38,180
To support the implementation of a new HR Information 
System

Nuclear & 
Energy

31,029
Committed spend in 2020-21 of £30,000, balance of Vision & 
Prospectus work by ARUP

Housing - excl 
homelessness

24,043
Underspend will help provide a pot for legal and other 
interventions to tackle privately owned empty houses

Property 133,197
GLL repair and maintenance budget underspend delayed due 
to imminent refurbishment works (£95k) and various budget 
underspends due to delayed maintenance works (£38k).

Homelessness 40,000
To enable temporary accommodation stock to increase and 
meet demand and also for full redecoration off all properties 
including new furnishings. 

266,449

Transfer from Earmarked Reserves
Reserve £ Comment

External 
Resources

417,000

Budgeted external income for the Infrastructure Resilience 
Project has been delayed to 2020/21, the External Resources 
reserve will meet the budget shortfall in 2019/20 and the 
funding received in 2020/21 will be used to replenish this 
reserve drawdown.

External 
Resources

350,000 To meet shortfall in Social Value Projects Partnership Funding.

Copeland Centre 
PFI

734,747
To meet shortfall in budgeted income due to delay in 
purchasing Copeland Centre, purchase made in March 2020 
with expectation of rental income in autumn 2020.

1,501,747

Page 170



Covid 19 Pandemic

LEAD MEMBER: Elected Mayor Mike Starkie
LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive
REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Smith

Why has this report come to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee? 
This report has been requested by Overview and Scrutiny Committee to provide an 
update to the Committee on the current position regarding the impact of Covid 19 on 
communities in Copeland and plans for recovery. 

SUMMARY:
This paper will provide Members of the Committee with a summary of key issues and 
activities that have been undertaken in response to the pandemic and its impact on 
businesses and communities across the Borough and the work underway to shape a 
recovery plan.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Members are asked to note the current position regarding the impact of the Covid 19 
pandemic in Copeland and comment upon plans for the development of a recovery 
plan.

1.     BACKGROUND AND CONTEXT

The post-Covid world is full of uncertainty currently for Copeland and the rest of the UK. 
The Council has been, and will continue to be, fundamentally at the core of supporting 
our communities through this process. As Members will be aware the Council has been 
a key provider of essential services through the response stage. Appendix A shows the 
magnitude of the Council’s collective role in the response phase between the start of 
the pandemic and mid-May, and of course this has continued in subsequent weeks and 
months.
 
As the country and localities turn their attentions to recovery we still need to be mindful 
of potential local outbreaks or ‘spikes’ in infection rates which may warrant specific 
‘response’ management arrangements including the potential for local lock-down 
measures as has been seen in such places as Leicester and Blackburn. The pandemic is 
having an international, national and regional impact and at the local level there is a 
need to monitor the changing situation that exists and be able to adapt to new 
situations as they develop. Members may also want to view two documents published 
by Government relating to recovery. The first is ‘Our Plan to Rebuild’ published in May 
(see https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/our-plan-to-rebuild-the-uk-
governments-covid-19-recovery-strategy) and the second published in July and is 

Page 171

Agenda Item 12

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/our-plan-to-rebuild-the-uk-governments-covid-19-recovery-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/our-plan-to-rebuild-the-uk-governments-covid-19-recovery-strategy


entitled ‘The Next Chapter in Our Plan to Rebuild. (see 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm
ent_data/file/901521/6.6783_CO_Our_Plan_to_Rebuild_FINAL_170720_WEB.pdf.) 

Equally fundamental is the role of the Council in leading the development of a new post-
pandemic aspirational future for our residents and businesses. The understanding is that 
both the impact and the process of recovery will be long term, with all parts of our 
communities affected. The response to the crisis has provided a valuable insight into 
vulnerabilities within our communities which we need to tackle in any future approach– 
but it has also provided some shining examples of how we can work together to help 
each other through such a crisis. The lockdown and the reduction in traffic movements 
has also generated a renewed interest in local environmental issues, climate change and 
enjoyment of the countryside and wildlife, issues which need to be built into any 
recovery plan.

2.     KEY WORKSTREAMS

Throughout the pandemic the Council has been integral to a number of work-streams;

 Coordination at a Cumbria Local Resilience Forum (LRF) level including both at 
response stage and more latterly engagement with the LRF Recovery Group

 Working with Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) specifically around 
economic recovery

 Specifically working with the LRF to support the establishment of the hospital 
back up facility and recovery centre in the Sports Centre.

 Working with local key stakeholders and supply chain partners to support local 
welfare coordination and the local recovery hub centre and a number of local 
community response activities such as the distribution of essential food needs 
through for example the ‘Bainbridge Bags’.

 Redeploying staff to support the LRF and wider community response to the 
pandemic

 Delivering support to local residents through the local recovery centre hub

 Managing the process of re-opening our town centres as the lockdown measures 
are lifted

 Collating information and data on impacts in the locality, working with the 
Cumbria Observatory to bring together relevant and reliable datasets.

Page 172

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/901521/6.6783_CO_Our_Plan_to_Rebuild_FINAL_170720_WEB.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/901521/6.6783_CO_Our_Plan_to_Rebuild_FINAL_170720_WEB.pdf


 Distributing grants and rates relief to local businesses

 Redesigning our work and skills programme to support our residents into 
employment through digital delivery

 Temporary homeless accommodation 

 Business Closure requirements – compliance checks and information and advice 
to those required to be closed 

Some of the key issues highlighted include;
 Food resilience – food poverty issues going forward and remaining throughout 

recovery process 
 Mental health issues – exacerbated or caused by current situation, health 

anxiety and stress, delayed access to health support, vulnerable families and 
individuals doubly affected by lack of access to support services

 Personal finances – loss of jobs, reduction of income, self-employed losing work 
– repercussions for CBC Council Tax income/benefits – implications for families 
living in poverty - Growth in number of people claiming Universal Credits - 
Number of employees furloughed especially within the nuclear sector and its 
supply chain and potential for further impact as furlough scheme closes.

 Analysis of use of social media and mass media - Has information got to people 
who don’t use social media or the internet?

 Homeless people – they have been found accommodation, but what will happen 
to them once the emergency situation is eased?  Will the Council be expected to 
continue to provide resources beyond the usual pre-Covid 19 provision?  There 
may be an increase in homelessness due to people finding themselves in 
unexpected financial difficulties

 Tourism/hospitality industry, plus retail and business impacts generally – target 
appropriate support to sectors during lock down and into recovery  

 Potential increase in domestic abuse – there are fewer reports at present, but 
when lockdown is lifted, there may be people who can then leave abusive 
relationships but need help.  A lot of this is hidden at present.  It will also be 
exacerbated by current situation.

 Digital exclusion and internet usage – stats show that only 2% of premises in 
Copeland have poor internet provision, but 12% of people don’t or can’t use it.  
Access to information, benefits, knowledge sharing is mostly via internet.

 Supporting businesses to meet Covid secure requirements when closure 
restrictions lifted

 Responding to a rise in referrals relating to anti-social behavior, crime and 
disorder

Page 173



 A newly created vulnerable group brought about by the effects of CV-19 i.e. 
those experiencing financial hardship and vulnerability from a cohort who up to 
now would not have experienced this at all, or, to such an extent and depth.

3. RECOVERY THEMES AND WORKSTREAMS 
    
It is clear that the period of recovery will need to focus on vulnerabilities highlighted and 
in some cases exacerbated by the pandemic. These include tackling;

 Food Poverty – long term arrangements required and access will be maintained 
to food in emergencies.  

 Mental health, loneliness and isolation, 
 Physical activity 
 Digital exclusion, 
 Debt management and budgeting.  
 Building community group and third sector capacity 
 Uncertainty about future employment prospects post furlough
 Social prescribing – referring patients to the right support in the community 
 Business support across sectors, particular focus to those hit hardest in tourism, 

retail, hospitality
 Town centre resilience, adapting to different markets and demands through 

developing leisure options
 Test and Trace support 

In terms of resourcing the support mechanisms, there are a number of working groups 
that have been established through partner collaboration including; 

 Copeland Recovery Group formed from the welfare response support 
(transitioning to be called Thriving Communities Forum).  

 Social Prescribing Group – CBC,CCC, NHS  
 Children’s Trust Board locality group – emerging.  
 Copeland Health and Well-Being Forum (link with Cumbria Health and Wellbeing 

Board)
 Town Deal Boards in Cleator Moor and Millom – Towns Fund delivery focused on 

Covid recovery
 Cumbria LRF – Strategic Recovery Coordination Group and Health Protection 

Board and Multi Agency Information Cell (MAIC)

The Thriving Communities Forum ensures that we maintain links with the excellent 
community response provided by both established and newly formed groups.  
Information from the welfare response group has and will continue to inform the 
Reboot plan.

Page 174



4.     REBOOT – DEVELOPING A RECOVERY PLAN FOR COPELAND
 
As we move from the response phase into recovery we now need to move forward from 
a reactive to a proactive mode, to provide leadership to our community and use what 
has been learned during the pandemic to form a plan for the future. 
ReBoot is more than a plan for recovery, it is a plan to re-boot - the economy, our 
aspirations and the way we work together. It will paint a picture of that aspirational 
‘new normal’ which is based on three key messages;

1. In the future no-one within the Copeland community will be ‘left behind’ – all 
residents will have equal access to the support services they require to meet 
their individual needs at a time and through a medium/channel that meets their 
preference. 

2. Our collective priority will be to ensure that we can all go about our day to day 
activities in a safe and healthy environment, with respect, regard and 
consideration for everyone inside and visiting our communities

3. We will all work together to ensure that we develop a more sustainable and local 
approach to protecting our environment, tackling climate change and supporting 
the local economy

Many of the Council’s strategies and policies are affected by the impact of the pandemic 
and the subsequent needs of our communities. Some are now outdated or outmoded 
and require overhaul. Others require a substantial rewrite for the post-Covid world.

The way we use our built estate has changed alongside our business need.  With the 
move to home and remote working throughout the pandemic, the way we occupy our 
operational buildings also needs to change.  The safety of our staff is paramount and our 
offices have been adapted to be safe places to work from, conforming to Government 
guidelines, with a continued emphasis on agile and flexible working.  The pandemic has 
presented opportunities to streamline our operations and our built estate is being used 
to support this new way of working.

The Council is currently delivering directly and supporting others to deliver a wide range 
of interventions and projects many of which have been designed and developed in a 
pre-Covid environment. Project funding opportunities such as the Future High Streets 
Fund, and Town Deals, Coastal Communities Fund and Borderlands will be cornerstones 
to invest of in our Borough to support the post Covid Plan going forward. 

We are working with Sellafield Ltd colleagues, and those from PPP too, to bring together 
the SL Social Impact programme with the proposals contained within the PPP 
programme (MESH) and those contained within the Council programme to create one 
overarching programme to ensure compatibility and added value, avoid duplication and 
make better use of project and programme management and project delivery and 
development resources, through exploring the potential the establishment of a ‘virtual 

Page 175



impact team’. With partners we are exploring how we can bring together the teams and 
individuals delivering these programmes into one virtual team and the management, 
monitoring, reporting and governance processes we would need to put into place to 
collaboratively deliver the expected outcomes.    

Through analysis of Covid 19 impact data we will need to prioritise existing projects 
(including maybe stopping those that have served their purpose or who no longer have 
a purpose in the post-pandemic Copeland) and may need to develop new ones to fill 
obvious gaps as evidenced by the data. For example the Council has recently launched 
‘Buy Local. Keep it in Copeland’, a digital trading platform to support recovery. 

The implementation of Reboot may result in implications for our workforce.  If this does 
then all people matters will be addressed in line with current legislation and full 
engagement with any employee that is affected.  Reboot will require our employees to 
model the correct behaviours, like they all did when in the response phase of the 
pandemic - Performing to a high standard, being Productive, Professional and 
Passionate so that they can understand and deliver their roles, maintaining a focus on 
residents and customers and the corporate expectation.

5. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS (IF APPLICABLE) 

5.1 Monitoring Officer and Legal Comments: 
No specific legal issues arise from this report. Any legal issues which have arisen from 
Covid-19 have been dealt with by specific decisions taken at the appropriate time either 
by Council, the Executive or the Chief Executive.  

5.2 Section 151 Officer Comments:

5.3 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Comments:

6. OTHER CONSULTEE COMMENTS  

Consultees:

Background Paper and Appendices:

Page 176



Appendix A

Page 177



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 1

Task and Finish Group Monitoring

Task and Finish 
Group

Chair of Task 
and Finish 
Group

Progress Next Step Estimated 
Completion 
Date

Recycling Review Cllr Andy Pratt Update on Recycling 
service given to 
group.

Members to send questions on Recycling 
service documents to Scrutiny Officer 
and Community Services Manager in 
advance of next meeting.

Impact of Covid-19: 
Community Services Manager has left 
Council. Scope of review changed 
significantly due to impact of pandemic. 
Chair of Task and Finish Group is no 
longer on OSC.

Q4 2019/20

Continue?

Older People Cllr Linda 
Jones-Bulman

First meeting held. 
Met with Copeland 
Older People’s Forum 
and Social 
Prescribing Officers 
to next steps.

Impact of Covid-19:
Pandemic has been particularly severe in 
care homes and to the older generation. 
Possibility of access to older generation 
at this time is nil.

Q4 2019/20

Continue?

P
age 179

A
genda Item

 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Standing Items

Item Corporate Plan Priority Purpose Lead Officer

Executive Forward Plan All To identify any forthcoming 
items which the Committee 
may consider.

Chief Executive

Update from Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Committee

Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities

To receive an update from 
the Cumbria Health and 
Scrutiny Committee from 
the nominated Copeland 
representative.

Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities

Update from the Single 
Table Trade Union Group 
(STTUG) Representative

A Commercial Council To receive an update from 
the Single Table Trade Union 
Group (STTUG) from the 
nominated Overview and 
Scrutiny representative. 

Human Resources Manager

Housing A Place for Growth and 
Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities

To receive any reports from 
the Strategic Housing and 
Social Inclusion Manager.

Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager

Task and Finish Group 
Updates

All To update the Committee on 
the progress of Task and 
Finish Groups.

Scrutiny Officer

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work 
Programme

A Commercial Council For the Committee to plan 
their work for the municipal 
year.

Scrutiny Officer

P
age 181

A
genda Item

 14



Agenda Items for Committee Meetings

IMPACT OF COVID-19

Below is the work programme as of the last meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6th February 2020. Items 
that are highlighted are no longer relevant to the work programme. The Committee must discuss the work of the 
Committee for the remainder of 2020/2021.

Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

Future High Street 
Fund

A Place for Growth Final business case 
overview before considered 
by Executive and sent to 
Government at the end of 
April 2020

Economic and 
Community 
Regeneration 
Manager

6th April 2020

2019/20 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter three of 2019/20.

Director of Financial 
Resources

P
age 182



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

2019/20 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter three of 
2019/20.

Performance and Risk 
Management Officer

Choice Based Lettings Employment Skills and 
Social Wellbeing

The Cumbria county wide 
Choice Based Lettings Policy 
is shared by all six districts 
and seven social landlords. 
It will be reviewed in Q1 of 
2020 to ensure Cumbria is 
still compliant with housing 
legislation and that we are 
making the best use of 
Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager Page 19 
Date Expected Item 
Corporate Plan Priority 
Detail Lead Officer social 
housing stock. This is the 
first step in that review 
process.

Strategic Housing and 
Social Inclusion 
Manager

Millom Hub Employment, Skills and 
Social Wellbeing, 
Strengthening the Way 

An update and presentation 
on the principles and 
progress of CBC in engaging 

Customer Services 
Team Leader/Director 
of Growth and 

P
age 183



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer

We Operate, Town 
Centre Regeneration

with and developing with 
Cumbria County Council a 
services Hub at Millom.

Inclusive 
Communities/Cumbria 
County Council Area 
Manager

Recycling Presentation Strengthening the Way 
We Operate

A presentation on the CBC 
Recycling Service. 
Committee will be invited to 
comment and question the 
officers on the future of the 
service.

Community Services 
Manager and Waste 
Management Officer

OSC Annual Report Strengthening the Way 
We Operate

Report on the work of the 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in 2019/20.

Scrutiny Officer

Climate Action Plan Playing to our 
Strengths

Rolling document which 
identifies actions the 
Council will take to reduce 
the organisations carbon 
footprint and harm to the 
natural environment.

Nuclear Sector 
Development Officer

Items to be programmed into the OSC Work Programme 2020/21

 Climate Action Plan
 Choice Based Lettings

P
age 184


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 6th February 2020
	4 Executive Forward Plan
	8 OSC Annual Report 2019/20
	Appendix A - Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2019-20

	9 Outside Bodies Report 2019/20
	Cllr Fee Wilson Community Fund
	Cllr Fee Wilson Safeguarding
	Group report (June 2020)CBC RHR WM
	Cllr Calvin
	Cllr Dave Banks - Risks & Hazard Reduction WG
	Cllr Gemma Dinsdale LLWR
	Cllr Gemma Dinsdale PCC
	Cllr Jackie Bowman
	Cllr Linda Jones-Bulman
	Cllr McVeigh Alliance
	Cllr McVeigh Cumbria Housing Group
	Cllr Moore Copeland Community Fund
	Cllr Moore North West Employers
	Cllr Moore NuLeaF
	Cllr R Studholme Spent Fuel WG
	Cllr Russell Studholme
	Cllr Weir
	Mayor Starkie BEC Board
	Mayor Starkie Copeland Community Fund Board
	Mayor Starkie Copeland Partnership
	Mayor Starkie Cumbria Leadership Board
	Mayor Starkie Cumbria LEP Board
	Mayor Starkie Joint Districts
	Mayor Starkie WCH Stakeholder Group
	Mayor Starkie WCSSG
	Cllr Carl Walmsley
	Cllr Doug Wilson Complete. 21-06-20
	Cllr Jeffrey Hailes
	Cllr Linda Jones-Bulman
	Cllr Sam Pollen
	Cllr Weir
	Appendix C - Agreed Outside Bodies List 2019-20

	10 2019/20 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 4
	Appendix A key deliverables for Q4 of 2019-20 (OSC)
	Appendix B KPIs for Q4 of 2019-20 (OSC)

	11 2019/20 Finance Report - Quarter 4
	12 Covid 19 Update and Recovery Plan
	13 Task and Finish Group Updates
	14 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

